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ALLG Vision
and Mission
Our 2021 vision is

Global leaders...
Global impact

Achieving our vision will
ensure that:
• A
 LLG is seen as an invaluable partner enabling the
efforts of blood cancer specialists.
CMYK Uncoated

• A
 LLG delivers sustainable services and innovative
outcomes… the first choice for high quality clinical
trial management.
• T
 he innovations of Australasia’s blood cancer
specialists improve the lives of more and more
blood cancer patients all over the world.

Summary of the 2016–2021 Strategic Plan

CMYK Uncoated

Vision

Mission

Values

Global leader, having
a global impact by
delivering robust
services and innovative
outcomes to improve
the treatments and
lives of blood
cancer patients.

To improve the
Integrity:
treatment and the
we are trustworthy, open,
lives of patients CMYK Uncoatedethical, and fair.
with leukaemia,
lymphoma and other
Quality:
haematological
we maintain rigorous
malignancies by
standards for all of our work.
advancing ‘leading
edge’ clinical trials
Collaboration:
in Australasia, and
we work as a team to solve
to be regarded by the
problems and achieve goals.
CMYK Uncoated
local and international
community as the
Innovation:
peak research body
we continually improve our
for these diseases
standard of excellence.
within our geographical
areas of operation
and influence.

Strategic Goals

Goal 1:
Deliver significant
scientific outcomes

Goal 2:
Enhance brand
and reputations

Goal 3:
Foster passionate
membership base

This Annual Review provides interested stakeholders an insight into the Australasian
Leukaemia & Lymphoma Group (ALLG) strategic focus areas, deliverables, and key
partner organisations during the 2017–2018 financial year.
Front cover featuring A/Prof Jake Shortt and patient Doug West
at Monash Medical Centre, Victoria

Goal 4:
Long term
sustainability
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This year, the ALLG
has continued
to move forward
by growing the
capabilities and
expertise of our
organisation in
order to realise
our full potential.

On behalf of the ALLG Board, I am
pleased to present our first Annual
Review and to congratulate the
organisation on celebrating 45 years
of clinical trial research.
Reflecting on our 2017–18
achievements, I am delighted to
report that it has been another highly
successful year for the ALLG. We have
continued to improve our external
image, strengthened engagement
with members, staff, partners,
other foundations and government.
Significant improvements have taken
place, focussing on servicing the
needs of our members and continuing
sound corporate governance.
The ALLG, with an established and
stable structure including a steady
financial base can look forward to
increasing the number of clinical trials
and accelerating trial recruitment rates
so that trial results can be quickly
achieved and translated into improved
outcomes for patients with blood cancer.

I would like to acknowledge and
thank the members of the SAC who
generously gave of their time and
expertise to oversee the research
pursuits of the ALLG. Without their
extraordinary contribution, the ALLG
would not be able to achieve its
primary objective of ensuring the ALLG
is an independent, self-sustaining,
member based research organisation.
Member engagement has been
one of our key objectives. We
have endeavoured to build on the
foundations of 2016–17 to continue
our work enabling members to be
innovative leaders in haematological
clinical trial research. The success of
each member is underpinned by the
ALLG continuing as a well-resourced,
self-sustaining member organisation
and we look forward to the group
advancing in a unified manner.
Each member plays an important part
whether large or small. For the ALLG
to continue its important work, it needs
its members to provide more trials
and faster accruals. Your support will
provide better outcomes for patients
hence our tag – “Better treatments…
Better lives.”
Earlier in the year, the Board
commissioned a pilot project, which
saw the CEO and the Chair of the
SAC visit a number of hospital sites to
impress on clinician members the need
to continue supporting independent
clinical trials. The visits commenced
in late 2017 giving us the opportunity
to understand what challenges our
members face and ways we can work
in collaboration to better support
clinical trials at our participating
hospital sites. The site visit pilot
program was an overwhelming
success and will continue in 2018–19.

The ALLG became a member of the
Australian Clinical Trials Alliance (ACTA)
and we intend supporting its activities
to promote high quality investigator led
clinical trials in Australia, particularly
with government.
We are looking forward to further
conversations with government,
industry and foundation partners to
advance blood cancer research, and
to ensure access to clinical trials is
as quick as possible in the most cost
efficient way for the community.
At the AGM, the rotation of SAC Chair
took place with Prof Mark Hertzberg
handing the reigns to A/Prof Peter
Mollee from Princess Alexandra
Hospital in Queensland. Mark has
demonstrated tireless dedication and
expertise in his seven years as Chair.
We wish both Mark and Peter much
ongoing success in their endeavours.
Also important to note was Janey
Stone being presented with an ALLG
Life Membership for her stellar 28year tenure with the ALLG. Janey
made major contributions to the
organisation over this time as both a
Trial Coordinator for 35 ALLG trials and
as Executive Officer from 2005–2007.
I would like to thank my Board
colleagues; Peter Bardy, Prue Deniz,
Geraldine Gray, Malcolm McComas,
Tina Rankovic, Andrew Roberts, and
Philip Rowlings for their continuing
interest in the work of the ALLG. In
addition, I would like to thank the
ALLG CEO, Delaine Smith and the
team for their individual and collective
contributions.
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Chief Executive
Officer’s report
Delaine Smith
We aim to give
our members
the best possible
opportunities to
develop, conduct
and translate clinical
trial research. This
year, ALLG achieved
an increase in
the number and
participation
of clinical trials, an
increase in member
engagement, and
improved site
commitment to
the trial program.

During the 2017–18 financial year,
we have continued to make gains in
our four key strategic directives: to
deliver significant scientific outcomes,
enhance brand and reputation, foster
passionate membership base and
ensure long-term sustainability. We
have continued to work in alignment
to progress our strategic goals
by focusing on trial diversity and
quality, considering better ways to
engage members, and improving our
operational efficiency.
Membership reached 799 Members;
consisting of 414 Full Members, 335
Associate Members, 43 Community

Members and 7 Life Members. We
had 22 clinical trials open and were
able to develop and approve three
new clinical trials during the year. A
major focus was on the National Blood
Cancer Registry and ways to secure
funding for the data registry and
sample biobank.

Snowdome. Three priority areas
were identified in 2017, these include
improving care for rural, regional and
remote communities; access to new
medicines; and support for research.
The forum explored different ways
to action these priority areas as we
continue to work in this area.

Through our involvement in the
Select Committee Inquiry into funding
for research into cancers with low
survival rates, we were quite pleased
with the final report and the 25
recommendations put forward by the
committee. The next steps for ALLG
will be to remain actively involved in the
implementation phase.

Through the establishment of a
stable structure and financial base,
we were able to increase our
organisational expertise by employing
a Communications & Marketing
Manager as well as a Philanthropic
& Fundraising Manger to increase
brand awareness and long-term
sustainability.

Further to this, the ALLG applauded
the launch of the landmark report
called ‘Economic evaluation of
investigator-initiated clinical trials
conducted by networks.’ Released
in August 2017, by the Australian
Commission on Safety and Quality in
Health Care and the Australian Clinical
Trials Alliance (ACTA), the welcomed
report analysed 25 Australian clinical
trials initiated by clinicians. One of
the most significant findings was the
5.8:1 benefit-to-cost ratio of clinical
trials – meaning that for each $1
invested in clinician-driven clinical trials
in Australia, benefits of $5.80 can be
realised.

As a result, the ALLG was able
to develop a sound Corporate
Communication Strategy and a
Philanthropic Strategy. During the
development phase of Corporate
Communication Strategy, we identified
the need to define our organisational
values. Organisational values are
necessary to support the vision, shape
the culture and reflect the type of
organisation the ALLG is by defining
the way we work as an organisation
with members, staff, stakeholders,
and industry partners. Through
consultations with the Board, staff,
and membership, we identified and
adopted four organisational values:
integrity, quality, collaboration and
innovation.

ALLG continued efforts with those
that share our vision by joining with
HSANZ to facilitate the second annual
Blood Cancer Forum. Chaired by
Prof Andrew Roberts, the forum is
an opportunity for the blood cancer
foundations and organisations to share
common areas for advancing blood
cancer initiatives. The forum included
representatives from Leukaemia
Foundation Australia, Lymphoma
Australia, Myeloma Australia, and

Thank you to all the members and staff
of the ALLG that continue to make
ALLG the success it is known for, and
we look forward in 2018 to take the
ALLG’s scientific endeavours to a new
level of achievement and prominence
in the world of Haematology and
blood cancers.
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45 YEAR MILESTONES

ALLG Milestones
Celebrating 45 years
of service
2018

2000

1999

Development of corporate roles.
Launch of the new look
ALLG website.

The release of ALLG’s first report
by Ken Bradstock

Laboratory Science Committee
formed. Fusion of ANZLG and
ALSG to form the ALLG

2017

ALLG launched the collaboration
with TROG for John Seymour and
Peter O’Briens LY04/TROG01.01

Focused on having a global
impact for Better Treatments…
Better Lives

2016
Development of the new Strategic
Plan and the ALLG Story
PG
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2015
ALLG switched from paper
to electronic case report
forms (CRFs)

2014
Official opening of the new ALLG
Headquarters in Richmond

2013
Establishment of ALLG in-house
Trial Centre.
Celebration of 40 years of clinical
trial service

2012
Publication of the ALLG’s APML4
trial. This trial represented the
most successful and high impact
trial conducted by the ALLG
membership.

2011

2001

2002
First involvement of a Consumer
Representative.
Safe Data Monitoring Committee
launched.
ALLG National Leukaemia &
Lymphoma Tissue Bank launched.

2003
Appointment of ALLG
Executive Officer.
Opening of Ken Bradstock’s
AMLM12 trials, which was our
largest ever trial with 442 patients.

2005
John Seymour commence as Chair.
NHMRC Enabling Grant Awarded.

2006
Membership reached 244
(22 per cent increase on the
previous year) with 26 trials
open to recruitment.

2007
First Cancer Australia
Infrastructure Grant awarded.

ALLG granted DGR status.
Launch of the 2010–2016
Strategic Plan.

2008

2010

2009

Establishment of a Board and
Scientific Advisory Committee.

Introduction of a dedicated
Protocol Development
Coordinator position to support
members new research ideas.

Establishment of Operations Unit.

1997
The PT1 clinical trial opened.
This would become the longest
running ALLG clinical trial.
Running for 16 years.

1987
ALLG opened its first international
clinical trial with the National
Cancer Institute Canada. HD01
was a multi-centre, phase 3
trial for advanced or recurrent
Hodgkin’s disease.

1986
Statistical Centre at Peter
MacCallum engaged
as Trial Centre.
First publication appears.

1982
Australian Leukaemia Study
Group (ALSG) was officially
formed as a member organisation.
The first paper was published
from the NHL1 trial.

1974
First Trial Patient Registered
in the first trial NHL1 – Phase 3
trial COP v PEP in non-Hodgkin’s
Lymphoma

1973
The first meeting of the Australian
& New Zealand Lymphoma Group
(ANZLG)
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ALLG
Highlights
•


Prof
Mark Hertzberg retired
as Chair of The Australasian
Leukaemia & Lymphoma Group
(ALLG) Scientific Advisory
Committee (SAC) after holding the
post for seven years. A/Prof Peter
Mollee, a SAC representative since
2012, replaced him.

•

 aunch of the ALLG corporate
L
narrative and new brand identity.
Better Treatments…Better Lives

•

J aney Stone, who retired after 28
years with the ALLG, was awarded
with an ALLG Life Membership.
Janey made major contributions
both as a Trial Coordinator for
34 ALLG trials, and as Executive
Officer where she laid the basis
for many of the procedures and
systems used today.

Our purpose is
Better treatments…
Better lives
• T
 o deliver clinical
trials to improve
the outcomes
of patients with
blood cancer
• T
 o develop clinical
trials that benefit
the member’s
research
• T
 o partner with
others that share
our vision

•

 uilding expertise with the
B
establishment of new roles and
subsequent recruitment of a
Marketing & Communications
Manager, and a Philanthropic &
Fundraising Manager

•

 esigning and developing the new
D
ALLG website.

•

 n Monday 11 June, the Chairman
O
of the ALLG, Mr Peter T Kempen
was announced as an honorary

Member (AM) in the general
division of the Order of Australia
honours for significant service to
the community through executive
roles with a range of health
organisations, to education, and
to the accountancy profession.
•

•

 ongratulating our members
C
Prof Maher Gandhi from the
University of Queensland,
and A/Prof David Curtis from
Monash University on securing
the Federal Government landmark
Medical Research Future Fund’s
(MRFF) Rare Cancers, Rare
Diseases and Unmet Needs
Clinical Trials Program.
 eveloping and implementing our
D
Organisational values: Quality,
Integrity, Collaboration, and
Innovation.

During the year, the organisation has
successfully achieved the following:
•

 1 contributions to government
1
consultations

•

2 publications in medical
research journals positioning
research breakthroughs

•

 conference presentations
8
of ALLG related research

•

 2 clinical trials were open
2
during the year to recruitment.

•

 new clinical trials developed
3
and approved

•

 embership reached 799
M
Members, this is made up of
414 Full Members, 335 Associate
Members, 43 Community
Members and 7 Life Members

•

 2 hospital sites participated
9
in clinical trials

•

 mployee numbers were 19
E
(17.5 FTE).
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Financial REPORT

Finance report
Malcolm McComas
Our portfolio of
clinical trials will
continue to be
closely managed.

in prior years. Our cash balance
will reduce over future periods as
the expenses for these trials are
progressively incurred and paid.
ALLG’s substantial cash reserves have
been invested in term deposits and a
range of listed and liquid securities and
have provided a return of more than
double the average term deposit rates.

Budget for FY2019
PG
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Financial performance
for FY2018
ALLG incurred a deficit of $116k
during FY18, a $68k reduction in the
$184k deficit incurred during FY17.
The FY18 result includes an operating
deficit of $110k for the National Blood
Cancer Registry (NBCR). Management
is focused on securing industry and
philanthropic support for the NBCR
to ensure its long term financial
sustainability. The result also includes
once-off costs for the transition of
clinical trial samples to the Hunter
Cancer Biobank, a lengthy process
that is now complete.
Total revenue for FY18 was $4.3m,
a small increase from $4.2m in FY17.
Total expenses remained steady
at $4.4m.
The ALLG has total assets of $4.2m
and net assets of $720k (FY17 $859k).
Cash at 30 June 2018 was $1.9m with
a further $1.5m of liquid investments.
Total cash outflow from operations
was $773k, compared to a cash inflow
of $9k in FY17. This decrease in cash
was anticipated and is due to the
payment of budgeted expenses for
trials that had generated cash inflows

The budget for FY19 provides for
a small surplus of $26k which is
particularly pleasing considering
it incorporates anticipated NBCR
operating expenses of $78k. Any
NBCR funding that is secured during
the year will increase this surplus. The
budget allows for the continuation
of the site visits program that
commenced during FY18. The visits
by the CEO and the SAC Chair to
recruitment sites around Australia have
provided valuable feedback on ways
to increase trial recruitment and
increase site engagement with ALLG.

Finance & Audit
Committee activities
The FAC met three times during the
financial year for usual business. This
work included reviews of cash flows
and financial controls, business and
operational risk, management and
statutory accounts, new clinical trial
budgets, investments and monitoring
the financial performance and cost to
complete of all current trials.
The FAC recommended a cost
reduction strategy for the NBCR during
the year, to reduce ongoing operational
costs until additional funding can
be secured. These strategies were
implemented in April 2018 and
resulted in a $30k reduction in

quarterly operational costs. If funding
can be secured, NBCR operations can
be restored to previous levels.

Acknowledgements
I thank the members who have
served on the FAC for their time
and expertise: Peter T Kempen AM,
Dr Constantine Tam, A/Prof Peter
Mollee and A/Prof Ian Lewis. The
Committee also thanks our Business
Manager, Ms Kelly Hetherton, who
has provided outstanding financial
and administrative support to the
Committee throughout the year.
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SAC Chair
report
A/Prof Peter Mollee
The ALLG continues
to provide an ideal
platform in which we
can discuss the latest
updates in blood
cancer diagnosis
and treatment, and
develop and answer
the next generation
of clinical trial
research questions.

The Scientific Advisory Committee of
the ALLG has the prime responsibility
of overseeing the scientific direction
of the organisation.
In 2017–18, the ALLG has enjoyed
great success with grants to support
clinical trial research from the Medical
Research Future Fund.
•

 /Prof Davis Curtis was awarded
A
funding to support the CAST trial,
a randomised phase 3 trial of
cyclophosphamide after sibling
allogeneic haematopoietic stem
cell transplant;

•

 rof Maher Gandhi will be leading
P
an open label, multicentre, phase
I study of ibrutinib, rituximab and
EBV specific T-cells in patients with
EBV-positive primary or secondary
CNS lymphoma unsuitable for
standard therapies;

•

 /Prof Andrew Wei received
A
funding to support a registry-linked
national platform trial to improve
precision-based outcomes using
novel therapies in acute myeloid
leukaemia; and

•

 rof Andrew Spencer received
P
funding to run a frailty-stratified
randomised controlled Bayesian
adaptive trial of bortezomib versus
lenalidomide in transplant-ineligible
myeloma – the FRAIL-M study.

These studies are all in advanced stages
of development and should be underway
in 2019.
The ALLG’s clinical trial portfolio
remains strong with 13 trials currently
open to accrual. Pleasingly, 2018 saw
the successful completion of accrual
to the AML M16 and ALL06 trials, both
flagship studies in their disease. The
MM17 and MM18 myeloma studies

completed accrual in record time
with the MM18 being the ALLG’s first
collaboration with the Asian Myeloma
Network. The NHL29 study of R-miniCHOP plus ibrutinib in the very elderly
with DLBCL is also enrolling on
schedule and will likely reach its target
accrual by the end of the year. Not all
ALLG’s trials are so successful and
ensuring positive accrual to its clinical
trials will remain an important focus
for the SAC.
The future of haematological research
in Australia and New Zealand depends
on bringing young scientists and
clinicians together to set the research
agenda to ensure we continue
to improve outcomes. The ALLG
continues to provide an ideal platform
in which we can discuss the latest
updates in blood cancer diagnosis and
treatment, and develop and answer
the next generation of clinical trial
research questions.
At its core, the ALLG is a clinical trial
group dependent on its members
to design and carry out clinical trials
for the benefit of our patients. It is
thus very satisfying to view the new
applications for full and associate
membership of the ALLG that arrive
each month. These new members are
the future of our organisation and I
extend them all a warm welcome.
As part of better engagement of our
members and their sites, the ALLG
will continue to visit member sites in
Australia and New Zealand over the
coming years. Visiting members at
their sites is always a highlight and
we hope to learn more about our
members and ways to overcome
barriers to the successful conduct
of clinical trials.
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Another highlight has been to see the
development of the acute leukaemia
trial portfolio where years of planning
will finally come to fruition in 2019.
The ALLG has opened the APML05
study, will join the HOVON/AMLSG
in two molecularly targeted RCTs,
open the platform maintenance
study and potentially open a study
for elderly AML as well. In ALL two
blinatumomab-based studies will be
underway in young and middle-aged
populations. Widespread uptake
of these flagship studies will be an
important milestone for the ALLG.
This portfolio is a credit to the Acute
Leukaemia Disease Group led by
A/Prof Andrew Wei and A/Prof
Will Stevenson.
In my first year as SAC Chair I am,
of course, indebted to my fellow
colleagues on the SAC. They

represent some of New Zealand
and Australia’s finest haematologists
(and now oncologist!), have been a
pleasure to work with and have been
a great support to me. I would like
to acknowledge the contributions of
Dr Robert Weinkove and A/Prof Will
Stevenson who are stepping down
from the SAC in November. Both have
worked hard in their respective areas
of Support Care and Acute Leukaemia
leading important initiatives, taking
on extra responsibilities when asked
and providing valuable advice. Rob’s
drive to improve the Scientific Meeting
for members and revitalising the
Supportive Care Disease Group, and
Will’s leadership in the AML Molecular
Harmonisation Project have been
tremendous. I wish them all the best
in their future endeavours and look
forward to their ongoing involvement
with the ALLG.

I am also indebted to my predecessor,
Prof Mark Hertzberg, who toiled
so hard over many years to leave
the organisation in great shape as
one of Australasia’s premier clinical
trial groups. The ALLG is also very
fortunate to be overseen by a Board
comprised of dedicated directors
invested in the success of the ALLG
and to have a CEO as talented as
Delaine Smith to put our vision for the
ALLG into practice. They have taught
me much in the last year.
Ultimately, however, the ALLG is our
organisation and the future success of
the ALLG hinges on the enthusiasm and
engagement of the entire membership.
I look forward to working with all of you.

In 2018 the allg membership were proudly represented by the following
sac committee:
Chair

Vice Chair

Committee Members

Prof Mark
Hertzberg
(July-November
2017) Prince of
Wales Hospital,
NSW

A/Prof
Peter Mollee
Princess
Alexandra
Hospital, QLD

Prof Stephen
Mulligan
Royal North
Shore Hospital,
NSW

A/Prof William
Stevenson
Royal North
Shore Hospital,
NSW

Dr Robert
Weinkove
Wellington
Hospital,
New Zealand

Prof David
Ritchie
(November
2017–Current)
Royal Melbourne
Hospital, VIC

Dr David Ross
(Newly elected in
November 2017)
Royal Adelaide
Hospital, SA

Prof Judith
Trotman
Concord
Repatriation
General Hospital,
NSW

Dr David Yeung
(Newly elected in
November 2017)
SA Health, SA

A/Prof
Peter Mollee
(November 2017–
Current) Princess
Alexandra
Hospital, QLD

A/Prof
Jake Shortt
Monash Health,
VIC

A/Prof
Andrew Wei
Alfred Hospital,
VIC

Dr Eliza Hawkes
(Co-opted
February 2018)
Austin and
Eastern Health,
VIC
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Marketing
Committee
report
Prue Deniz
This year we have
made significant
headway in progressing
two key elements
of our marketing
and communication
strategy by focussing
on better member
engagement and
brand awareness.

Highlights this year included expanding
our team to include a Communications
& Marketing Manager, further building
our brand awareness to complement
fundraising campaigns and better
tailoring our communications with our
members by reviewing our channels
to gain a better understanding of how
they engage with us.
During 2017, we continued to work
towards the delivery of our five key
marketing objectives in support of
the overarching ALLG strategic plan.
These objectives include:
1.	Our commitment to
strengthening our brand;
2.	Developing stakeholder
content;
3.	Supporting our members
in everything we do;
4.	Celebrating our clinician
successes; and
5.	Collaborating with external
stakeholders.

This year, the addition of the
Communications & Marketing
Manager, Bernadette Marr has
opened the ALLG up to many new
opportunities that has enabled us
to further our strategic objectives
including the introduction of new
marketing collateral, better staff and
membership engagement, and the
introduction of the National Blood
Cancer Registry (NBCR) campaign.
There were several key highlights in
2017–18. Of significance, the ALLG
commenced the major undertaking of
redeveloping our website to support
the organisations next phase of growth
and evolution.
Launched in June 2018, the new
website better reflects the strategic
direction of the ALLG, in both its visual
identity and messaging, while also
providing visitors with a much more
user-friendly experience. Importantly,
the new website platform has also
provided enhanced data analytics so
that we are able to more effectively
monitor, measure, and report on key
activities. The ALLG website remains
an integral platform to connect and
engage with our key audiences and we
look forward to enhancing the website
in the longer term.
The ALLG once again invested
significant effort and expertise
in running its bi-annual Scientific
Meetings in November and May. With
the addition of the Communications
& Marketing Manager, we were able
to include a number of new initiatives
these being the implementation of the
Members Welcome Card, launch of
adobe marketing videos, fundraising
area, and the distribution of a members
survey that offered valuable insight into
the way we engage with our members.

The 2017 Research Report was
launched at the May 2018 Scientific
Meeting. Individual letters were
included to invite potential partnerships
with Local and Federal Government
with meetings to commence later in
the year. In addition, we were able
to launch the National Blood Cancer
Registry funding proposal to a select
number of pharmaceutical companies.
The ALLG submitted 11 submissions
to government regarding important
health and medical research topics
solidifying our standing as a wellknown and highly regarded industry
authority and giving us the opportunity
to grow our brand and reputation.
Of significance, the ALLG submitted
a report to the National Health and
Medical Research Council regarding
the process of dispersed funding
via the Medical Research Future
Fund, and a number of important
submissions to the Therapeutic Goods
Administration, PBAC and MSAC.
Finally, the ALLG capitalised on a
number of strategic relationship
building opportunities by participating
in key domestic and international
industry conferences and forums.
This included the American Society of
Haematology 58th Annual meeting,
the HAA Scientific Meeting, the 2nd
annual ALLG and HSANZ blood
cancer forum, and LFA New Directions
Leukaemia Research Conference.
We greatly appreciate the time and
expertise of our marketing committee
who are integral to building a more
robust and sustainable marketing
function within the ALLG. Turning to
next year, we remain highly motivated
by the opportunities ahead and look
forward to sharing our progress with
you in our next annual review.
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Philanthropy Committee report

Philanthropy
Committee
report
Tina Rankovic
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We would like
to thank William
Angliss Charitable
Fund Victoria for
funding a centifruge
at the Royal
Melbourne Hospital
in Melbourne. We
would also like to
acknowledge all of
our supporters who
donated to the ALLG
in FY18. Without
your generous gifts,
the ALLG would not
be able to provide
Australians with
the best treatments
available for blood
cancer patients.

Over the last financial year, the
Philanthropy & Fundraising
Development Plan expanded
significantly to include a range of
new fundraising programs and
initiatives. In line with the Strategic
Priorities and Objectives, philanthropic
& fundraising activities focused
on greater communication with
stakeholders, greater awareness of the
ALLG and increased opportunities for
collaboration and engagement.

In FY18, new Philanthropy &
Fundraising Manager Bebe Beckerman
redeveloped ALLG’s philanthropy &
fundraising program, implementing
a new operational plan. Having a
dedicated staff member has allowed
the ALLG to focus its efforts on
establishing fundraising programs
that will directly benefit members’
innovative new research.
For the first time, the ALLG has
adopted the use of a customised
member and donor management
program, eTapestry was used
effectively to undertake data analysis,
extrapolate reports and manage
engagement with stakeholders. In
combination with a brand new ALLG
website, both systems have enhanced
ALLG’s visibility, as well as improving
experiences with members, supporters
and the public.
To create more opportunities for our
supporters, we created an online
fundraising account with GoFundraise.
Using this platform, anyone can
fundraise for the ALLG by organising
or taking part in an event and
encouraging their friends, family and
colleagues to donate to their personal
fundraising page. It has been great
to see the challenges our supporters
have set for themselves, both in terms
of meeting their fundraising targets and
overcoming physical obstacles.
The end of financial year campaign
followed the journey of Ben, one of
our clinical trial participants and it
was fantastic to see our supporters
respond so well to our mail out. We
thank everyone for their generous
donations at tax time and in FY19,
we will continue to provide you with

updates on exciting new research and
inspiring stories from our clinical trial
participants.
With the efforts of a dedicated staff
member, we were able to triple our
funding submissions in FY18. During
the financial year, we made thirteen
submissions to trusts, foundations and
government bodies, securing funding
from over half of these applications.
The significant work made on the grant
submissions was rewarded with ALLG
being successful with part trail funding
for ALL9, and full funding for BM12
and NHL31.
•

In the second half of FY18, we had
the highest income from donations
since a one-off major gift in FY14.

•

In one year, we more than doubled
the number of donors, compared
with the total number of donors
acquired over a four-year period
between FY14 and FY17.

In combination with raising muchneeded funds, it has been a major
focus of the organisation to spread
awareness of blood cancer and
the importance of clinical trials.
With the appointment of new
staff members Bebe Beckerman
and Bernadette Marr, it has been
possible to create visually appealing,
educational materials to disseminate
to stakeholders and the public,
alongside informative and exciting
communications. We look forward
to continuing our relationship with
supporters well into FY19 and utilising
our newly developed programs to
reach more Australians.
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Collaborators,
Partners and
Supporters
This year we have
made significant
headway in progressing
two key elements
of our marketing
and communication
strategy by focussing
on better member
engagement and
brand awareness.

Consumer Representative
Committee
Consumers play a vital role in research
decision-making. To ensure the ALLG
maintains a consumer focus, the
Consumer Representative Committee
(CRC) is a key element to make sure
the ALLG is maintain the quality of care
to clinical trial patients and the public.
The purpose of this group is to provide
a consumer perspective for the ALLG
and help to implement the strategic
objectives of the ALLG by becoming
involved in different activities.
This year we continued to build on
the strength of the CRC through the
implementation of new marketing
and communication initiatives. The
CRC met three times during the
2017–18 financial year with a number
of unofficial meetings taking place
to discuss different elements of new
fundraising campaigns.
As the group grows, so will the
contributions of the group and we are
extremely thankful and appreciative
of the committee members Anne
Hodgson (Chair), John Stubbs,
Nathalie Cook, Pam Keirs, Steve
Towell and Sandra Slater (retired).

Collaboration Partners
•

Brian Ward and Partners;

•

 ax Centre for the loan of artworks
D
on display at the ALLG Office;

•

Grant Thorton;

•

Marissa Webb Creative;

•

Gosh Creative

•

Synapse IT Consultants

In particular, the ALLG would like
to extend a special thank you to those
that gave their time and services
in gratis.

Trial Participants
People with cancer who make an
informed decision to participate
in a clinical trial provide the gift of
information that has helped scientists
and doctors develop new ways to
slaw, halt and prevent cancer. We
would like to thanks all of those
participants who take part in our
clinical trials. Over the last 45 years,
the ALLG has enrolled more than
9,500 patients in over 150 clinical
trials.

Supporter Profile
Thank you to our top GoFundraise
supporter Natalia Racomelara. As
part of the Relay for Life Event, Natalia
fundraised $2,588 for the ALLG.
Congratulations Natalia on an
amazing result.
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High Grade Non-Hodgkin
Lymphoma & Hodgkin
Lymphoma (HG NHL & HL)
Chairs

Current Trial / Trialist

Dr Eliza Hawkes

HD08 Trotman

A/Prof Peter Mollee

HD10 Hertzberg
NHL21 Hertzberg

Committee members
Tasman Armytage
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We are in an exciting
time for high grade
lymphomas with novel
therapies entering the
mainstream treatment
of these diseases globally,
both in treatmentnaïve and relapsed
settings. All of our new
trials incorporate new
agents, new treatment
technologies and
cutting edge laboratory
research. We continue
to collaborate with our
international colleagues
as well as develop trials
within Australia in order
to bring the best care
to our patients with high
grade lymphomas on
clinical trials.
Dr Eliza Hawkes

NHL24 Issa
NHL25 Trotman
NHL29 Trotman

Ali Bazargan
Leanne Berkahn
Piers Blombery

Trial in the pipeline

Waqas Bokhari

NHL31 Gandhi

Chan Cheah

New trial concepts are being
considered for the treatment
of Primary CNS Lymphoma,
Mantel Cell Lymphoma and
Non-Hodgkin’s Lymphoma

Geoff Chong
Tara Cochrane
Michael Dickinson
Lindsay Dunlop
Maher Gandhi
Shane Gangatharan
Gareth Gregory

ALLG Key Trial
Centre Staff

Uwe Hahn

Suzanne Cake

Nada Hamad

Rachel Cushion

Mark Hertzberg

Jennifer Grigo

Amanda Johnston
Matthew Ku
Hui-Peng Lee
David Ma
Kate Melville
Mark Polizzotto
Anita Shetty
Ferenc Szabo
Dipti Talaulikar
Judith Trotman
Andrew Wirth
Max Wolf
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The aim of the high-grade lymphoma
group is to work together to bring
the best of new treatments and
technologies to patients through
participation in clinical trials developed
and driven by expert researchers
in this field.

The results of the ALLG NHL25
(“REMARC”) (Prof Judith Trotman)
phase 3 randomized study of
Lenalidomide maintenance in first-line
elderly diffuse large B-cell lymphoma
patients was published in the Journal
of Clinical Oncology in 2017.

The ALLG HD10 (German Hodgkin
Study Group HD21 trial) opened at
15 sites in the first quarter of 2018.
This 1,500 patient study aims to
incorporate Brentuximab vedotin in
order to improve short and long term
safety while preserving the established
efficacy of BEACOPP-esc treatment.
This will be the first time in a decade
since the ALLG has conducted a trial
with the prominent German Hodgkin
Study Group (GHSG).

Prof Maher Gandhi has a new
trial examining the use of different
treatments for CNS lymphoma.
Underpinned by substantial correlative
science, this proposal is a highly
innovative and exciting in a relatively
rare but difficult disease and we look
forward to it opening later in 2018.

In the ALLG NHL29 clinical trial study of
Ibrutinib, Rituximab and mini-CHOP first
line therapy in very elderly diffuse large
B-cell lymphoma (DLBCL) patients (Dr
Emma Verner, Prof Judith Trotman) is
accruing ahead of schedule and should
reach its target in 2018. We are eagerly
awaiting the results of this study.
We have new trials in development
in primary central nervous system
(CNS) lymphoma and post-transplant
lymphoproliferative diseases using
novel agents and technologies.
These new trials have a strong focus
on incorporating comprehensive
translational biomarker research.
NHL24 ALLG-HOVON intergroup study
of rituximab in primary CNS lymphoma
were presented at ASH in Atlanta in
December 2017, and the results were
both tantalising and controversial
provoking much discussion and
affording the ALLG significant publicity.

We are exploring further with the
German High Grade NHL study group
(DSHNHL) the possibility of participation
in their large Intergroup “NIVEAU” study
in relapsed/refractory DLBCL patients
unfit for autologous SCT comparing
R-Gemcitabine-Oxaliplatin with or
without Nivolumab and hope that this
can open in a number of ALLG sites
this year.
We also have new trials in development
in primary CNS lymphoma and posttransplant lymphoproliferative diseases
using novel agents and technologies.
These new trials have a strong focus
on incorporating comprehensive
translational biomarker research.
Congratulations to Prof Mark Hertzberg
for publishing the NHL21 study:
Haematologica. 2017 Feb;102(2):356–
363. Hertzberg M, Gandhi MK, Trotman
J, Butcher B, Taper J, Johnston A,
Gill D, Ho SJ, Cull G, Fay K, Chong G,
Grigg A, Lewis ID, Milliken S, Renwick
W, Hahn U, Filshie R, Kannourakis G,
Watson AM, Warburton P, Wirth A,
Seymour JF, Hofman MS, Hicks RJ;
Australasian Leukaemia Lymphoma
Group (ALLG).
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DISEASE GROUP reports

Acute Leukaemia
& Myelodysplasia
(ALL, AML & MDS)
Chairs

Current Trial / Trialist

A/Prof Andrew Wei

ALL05 Grigg

A/Prof William Stevenson

ALL06 Greenwood

Prof David Ritchie

ALL08 Fleming
AMLM15 Wei

Committee members
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AMLM16 Wei
AMLM17 Wei

Asma Ashraf

AMLM20 Wei

Ashish Bajel

AMLM21 Wei

Dominik Beck

APML05 Iland

Ashanka Beligaswatte

MDS04 Kenealy

Ken Bradstock
Lynette Chee
David Curtis

Improvements in cancer
treatments are often
incremental with
successive clinical
trials improving patient
outcomes compared to
previous clinical practice.

Luciano Dalla-Pozza

A/Prof Andrew Wei

Uwe Hahn

Michael Dickinson
Anoop K Enjeti
Chun Yew Fong
James Gray
Matthew Greenwood
Carolyn Grove
Nada Hamad
Devendra Hiwase
Harry Iland
Akash Kalro
David Kipp
Paula Marlton
Nalini Pati
Sushrut Patil
Travis Perera
John Pimanda
John Seymour
Ing Soo Tiong

Trial in the pipeline
ALL09 Greenwood, AMLM22 Wei,
AMLM24 Wei, AMLM23 Marlton
New Trial concepts are being
considered for treatment of newly
diagnosed ALL, maintenance
AML, including and consolidating
treatment for AML, and elderly
front-line AML

ALLG Key Trial
Centre Staff
Amanda Jager
Ashlee Burt
Tracey Gerber
Giulia Quattrocchi
Uyen Nguyen
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The Acute Leukaemia Disease
Group, over the last two decades,
has explored chemotherapy dose
escalation to optimise remission and
survival rates in patients diagnosed
with acute myeloid leukaemia (AML).
Three scientific manuscripts published
in 2017 from the Acute Leukaemia /
MDS study group demonstrate this
improvement in patient outcomes
driven by well-designed collaborative
research. Prof Ken Bradstock has
been a key leader of this program and
the last of these planned dose-finding
trials was published in the prestigious
Journal of Clinical Oncology in 2017.
The ALLG continues to design clinical
trials with interventions designed
to improve patient outcomes but
the focus has shifted from dose
escalation trials to new therapies
that are designed to target specific
changes in the leukaemia cell that
drive uncontrolled growth. The current
ALLG AMLM16 trial has examined
the utility of the addition of sorafenib
to standard chemotherapy to target a
common mutation in AML involving the
FLT3 gene. This trial is now close to
completing accrual and is anticipated
to provide important data regarding the
role of FLT3 inhibition in AML. Planned
clinical research activity in AML aims to
introduce further targeted treatments at
different times in the treatment program
including the study of novel agents in
maintenance therapy.

The ALLG has joined with Leukaemia
experts in the US and Israel to examine
the important issue of severe bleeding
in the treatment of acute promyelocytic
leukaemia (APL). Pooling of clinical trial
data from two ALLG APL trials (APML3
and APML4) with other clinical data
sets identified risk factors in patients
for haemorrhagic death. Analysis of
clinical parameters from 995 patients
indicated that the total white cell count
at diagnosis was the most important
predictor of haemorrhagic death in this
high-risk leukaemia patient population.
Further studies in APL have been
initiated, with Prof Harry Iland leading
an early phase clinical trial, APML5,
examining the use of oral arsenic that
aims to replace standard intravenous
infusions of arsenic therapy. If
successful, this will allow APL patients
to experience significant improvements
in quality of life, as they will receive
treatment with oral tablet therapy at
home rather than attending hospital for
frequent intravenous infusions.
Large clinical trials performed
in Europe and the US in the last
decade established the central role
of azacitidine in the management
of high-risk myelodysplastic
syndromes. Further clinical advances
in myelodysplasia have been difficult
to obtain, with many different
international study groups adding
additional agents to azacitidine with
mixed results. Dr Melita Kenealy has
led two ALLG trials investigating the
addition of immunomodulatary therapy
to standard azacitadine with the first of
these studies being published in 2017.
Myelodysplastic syndromes are a blood
cancer recognised by the members
as an area where further clinical trial
development is needed.

In the ALL portfolio, the ALLG ALL8
study of Blinatumomab in combination
with a modified hyper- CVAD
backbone openen in April 2018. The
ALLG ALL9 study of a modified BFM
backbone with Blinatumomab is set
to follow the ALL8 study and includes
adolescents and younger adults, which
is an important collaboration with our
paediatric colleagues. Finally, ongoing
development for ALL clinical trials
continue to follow on from the success
of ALLG ALL5, and set to be published
in 2018.
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DISEASE GROUP reports

Low Grade Non-Hodgkin
Lymphoma & Chronic
Lymphocytic Leukaemia
(LG NHL & CLL)
Chairs

Current Trial / Trialist

Prof Stephen Mulligan

CLL05 Mulligan

Prof Judith Trotman

CLL06 Gottlieb
CLL07 Mulligan

Committee members
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 he focus of the group
T
in relation to Low Grade
Lymphoma continues to
be on identifying potential
clinical trial options of
a number of promising
new agents.
Prof Stephen Mulligan

NHL14 Bradstock
NHL16 Seymour

Tasman Armytage

NHL26 Trotman

Asma Ashraf

NHL27 Warburton

Ian Bilmon
Waqas Bokhari
Duncan Carradice
Chan Cheah

ALLG Key Trial
Centre Staff

Shane Gangatharan

Tracey Gerber

Uwe Hahn

Suzanne Cake

Nada Hamad

Rachel Cushion

Rosemary Harrup

Ashlee Burt

Eliza Hawkes

Jennifer Grigo

Amanda Johnston
Anna Johnston
Matthew Ku
Bryone Kuss
Maya Latimer
Hui-Peng Lee
Kylie Mason
Stephen Opat
Gurdeep Parmar
Mark Polizzotto
John Seymour
Dipti Talaulikar
Con Tam
Campbell Tiley
Robert Weinkove
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Although new and emerging clinical
trials are limited, the ALLG membership
has provided significant collaboration
in cross-referral between member
sites to support recruitment to these
disease group trials. The ALLG NHL27
RELEVANCE trial comparing different
treatment combinations in first line
treatment of follicular lymphoma (FL)
failed to meet its primary endpoint. The
complete data was presented at the
European Haematology Association
Congress in 2017.
Dr Amanda Johnston (Hobart) and Prof
Judith Trotman (Concord) are soon to
start the ALLG’s participation in the
UK-led PETReA Study of PETguided
Response-Adapted therapy in high
tumour burden FL, and it will be
great to add another large frontline
international collaboration in FL to
the ALLG’s portfolio. This 820 patient
study is aimed to improve the poor
outcome of patients who remain PET+
after first-line therapy by randomising
these patients to standard rituximab
maintenance verses rituximab plus
lenalidomide, and to compare rituximab
maintenance with observation alone
in patients who become PET negative
after first-line treatment.
The first analysis of the ALLG
NHLLOW5 TROG 99.03 study results
were presented at the 2017 Lugano
conference on malignant lymphoma,
while the first manuscript is currently
under peer review. A follow-up analysis
of this study will be performed in
2018. It will include a ‘futility analysis’
which will determine whether followup will continue after this point. Trial
bio-specimens will be analysed in
the coming three years as part of an
NHMRC funded study commencing
in 2018. Principal investigator of the
translational study is Prof Maher Gandhi.

A/Prof Dipti Talaulikar designed a
randomised phase 2 study with
a combination of three different
treatments in untreated and relapsed
refractory patients with Waldenstrom
Macroglobulinemia. It was presented
for discussion at ASH 2017. The project
concept was well received by clinicians
and will be further scoped for feasibility.
Chronic Lymphocytic Leukaemia
(CLL) continues to be an active area
of clinical investigation for ALLG in
2017–18. Due for publication, the ALLG
CLL5 trial, led by Prof Stephen Mulligan
demonstrated that different treatments
could be administered safely to the
typical elderly patient with CLL, and
that reduced doses were well tolerated.
The trial recruited 120 patients over
a period of 4years and has paved the
way for better treatments for older
patients with CLL.
The ALLG CLL6 trial, led by Prof David
Gottlieb, is focused on maintenance
therapy in CLL following the standard
treatment induction therapy. The trial
randomises treatment maintenance for
two years versus the standard watchand-wait approach. The trial became
an international collaboration with
the French ‘FILO’ CLL group when
they joined the study and they have
substantially boosted recruitment. The
research team behind CLL6 is aiming
for finalisation during 2018, with the
aim to produce results that will improve
the understanding of the biology and
treatment of CLL.
The ALLG CLL07 is a Phase II,
multicentre, randomised, study
investigating efficacy and safety for
dose reduced treatments vs oral
treatments in previously untreated,
elderly patients. The Principal
Investigators are Prof Stephen

Mulligan, A/Prof Constantine Tam, Dr
Xavier Badoux and A/Prof Bryone Kuss.
Recruitment for this trial commenced
in 2017 and was the first ALLG trial to
function fully with the new electronic
case report form system. This trial
addresses the important question of
how to best treat the older CLL patient
with comorbidities – the answer to this
question will be highly relevant as the
era of novel therapies continues to
emerge.
Both signalling pathways and the
microenvironment are emerging as
important targets for therapy in the
low grade lymphomas with multiple
ongoing studies internationally.
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DISEASE GROUP reports

Chronic Myeloid Leukaemia
& Myeloproliferative
Neoplasms (CML & MPN)
Chairs

Current Trial / Trialist

Dr David Yeung

CML06 Hughes

Dr David Ross

CML07 He
CML08 Ross

Committee members
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The CML/MPN group
continues to design and
conduct innovative and
impactful research with
the aim of improving
the lives of our patients
globally.
Dr David Yeung

CML09 Hughes
CML10 Hughes

Ashish Bajel

CML11 Yeung

Dominik Beck

CML12 Yeung

Cecily Forsyth

MPN01 Forsyth

Andrew Grigg

PT01 Forsyth

Nada Hamad
Simon He
Devendra Hiwase
Tim Hughes
Matthew Ku
Steven Lane

Trial in the pipeline
New trial concepts are being
considered for treatment of newly
diagnosed CML, relapsed CML
and treatment for remission.

Maya Latimer
Kate Melville
Anthony Mills
Michael Osborn

ALLG Key Trial
Centre Staff

Nalini Pati

Amanda Jager

Lucy Pemberton

Rachel Cushion

Andrew Perkins

Ashlee Burt

Anthony Schwarer

Michelle Paul

Mohamed Shanavas
Con Tam
Stephen Ting
Agnes Yong
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Despite significant improvements in the
life span of Chronic Myeloid Leukaemia
(CML) patients brought about by the
introduction of targeted therapy (also
called tyrosine kinase inhibitors or
TKIs) such as imatinib, nilotinib and
dasatinib, a number of important
research questions remain. As CML
patients’ life expectancy approaches
that of the general population,
minimising side effect and their
impact on quality of life and function
is becoming increasingly important.
Currently open, the ALLG CML 12
DIRECT study (Dr David Yeung, Prof
Andrew Grigg and Prof Tim Hughes)
was designed with this aim in mind.
Starting newly diagnosed patients
on the highly potent anti-CML drug
called dasatinib; patients are regularly
monitored for drug levels in the blood,
their dose adjusted accordingly.
Although dasatinib is a highly effective
CML therapy, a significant number of
patients will encounter side effects
such as pleural effusion (or fluid around
the lungs). Existing evidence suggest
that patients with high drug levels are
at higher the risk of developing such
side effects, and that reducing the
dasatinib dose in these patients may be
safe and effective. Early results of this
study is expected mid-2019.
Careful patient management in the
initial period after CML diagnosis
is important in establishing disease
control to enable achievement of long
term treatment goals. One such target
is called deep molecular response
(DMR) – achieved when CML is
undetectable even with highly sensitive
tests. The ALLG CML 11 Pinnacle
study (Dr David Yeung, Prof Andrew
Grigg and Prof Tim Hughes) looked
to combination therapy to improve
the rates of DMR. Pairing pegylated

interferon – commonly used in the
pre-TKI era – with the highly potent
TKI nilotinib, the combination has
demonstrated excellent efficacy. The
preliminary results of this study will be
presented at the American Society of
Hematology Annual Scientific Meeting
(ASH) in December 2018.
Perhaps the ultimate strategy to
avoid long term toxicity associated
with anti-CML therapy is to stop the
medications. When TKIs were originally
introduced into clinical practice, it was
thought that stopping treatment would
inevitably lead to rapid disease relapse.
Scientific data at the time showed that
even with effective disease control,
CML stem cells may be protected
against damage form TKIs, lie dormant
for years, and reactivate with treatment
is stopped. We now know, thanks to
pioneering research from the ALLG,
that this is not universally the case. The
ALLG CML 8 TWISTER study, led by
David Ross and Tim Hughes, showed
that in 40 patients who achieved and
maintained DMR for more than 2
years, 43% can stop TKIs without the
disease coming back. For patients
who did not experience CML relapse
within the first year, late relapses were
rare. An update of the CML8 trial of
imatinib discontinuation (TWISTER) was
accepted for publication in Leukemia.
This report confirmed long-term
durability of TFR and reported that
BCR-ABL could still be detected in
many patients even after more than 5
years in TFR.
The results of TWISTER and other TKI
stopping studies demonstrated that
stopping TKI without relapse is possible
in approximately half of the patients
who have achieved DMR, allowing
patients to achieve treatment free
remissions (TFRs). Significant work lies

ahead in identifying patients who are
ready to stop, versus those too early
to stop and are destined to relapse.
The ALLG CML 10 RESIST study (PI
Tim Hughes) is an Australasian wide
CML patient registry that captured
outcomes of an expanded cohort of
patients who had TFR attempts. Data
from this analysis will be presented by
Dr Naranie Shanmuganathan at ASH in
December 2018.
Looking forward, the disease group
would like to expand on the themes of
minimising treatment related toxicity,
maximising DMR, and improving the
rates of TFR in CML patients, as well
as improving access to treatment in
MPN patients. The group is working
with industry partners to design the
next generation of studies, including
incorporation of the first in class drug
called asciminib for CML. Asciminib
(ABL001) in early studies showed
significant activity against CML, and
may be combined with traditional
TKIs to benefit patient who are newly
diagnosed, or to consolidate response
in patients prior to stopping TKIs. A
proposal for a novel switching strategy
is currently up for discussion, as
proposed by PI Dr Lucy Pemberton
and Prof Peter Browett. A proposal for
a TFR registry to inform TFR practice
is also in development. In MPN,
the recent PBS listing of pegylated
interferon (Pegasys) for MPN may spur
interest in the field, and proposals from
members are welcome. A correlative
science proposal is being developed.
The disease group would like to thank
all investigators, co-ordinators, and
patients for their continued support of
our studies in Australasia.
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DISEASE GROUP reports

Bone Marrow Transplant
(BMT)
Chair
Prof David Ritchie

Current Trial / Trialist
BM06 Ritchie
BM07 Grigg

Committee members
Sharon Avery
Ashish Bajel

PG
22

Collaboration with
international groups
is desirable for many
reasons and is certainly
necessary to power
studies addressing
important questions in
the field of bone marrow
transplantation. Invitations
to participate by the
Canadian Bone Marrow
Transplant Study Group
and the German CLL
Study group will foster
international relationships
for the ALLG regarding
future BMT trial capability.
Prof David Ritchie

Leanne Berkahn
Waqas Bokhari
Ken Bradstock
Andrew Butler
Lynette Chee
Julian Cooney
David Curtis
Nada Hamad
Devendra Hiwase
Glen Kennedy
Amit Khot
John Kwan
Stephen Larsen
Ian Lewis
Andrew Lim
John Moore
Nalini Pati
Sushrut Patil
Travis Perera
Duncan Purtill
Anthony Schwarer
Jeff Szer
Patricia Walker
Agnes Yong

BM12 Curtis & Pati

Trial in the pipeline
New trial concepts being considered
are in the area of Supportive Care
Treatments in the Transplant Setting.
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The Swedish collaboration, ALLG
BM06 trial, initial analyses have been
undertaken and the first of many
abstracts were presented at ASH 2017,
and the Canadian BMT Society 2018
annual meeting.
The ALLG has been an active
contributor to this prospective study of
outcome (survival, relapse, GvHD and
QOL) in patients over 50 with acute
myeloid leukaemia (AML) comparing
the outcome of reduced intensity
transplantation with standard of care.
The BMT group has been
developing the ALLG BM12 CAST
(Cyclophosphamide after Sibling
Transplant) study. The Medical
Research Future Fund successfully
funded the study and the final protocol
is nearing completion. This will be
a randomised trial comparing posttransplant cyclophosphamide against
standard of GVHD prophylaxis in adult
recipients undergoing sibling allogeneic
transplantation for acute leukaemia
and will be a major multicentre
interventional study driven by the ALLG
membership.
The ALLG BM07 study examining
the use of zoledronic acid to
prevent bone mineral density loss
in allograft recipients was closed in
2014 and the manuscript has been
completed and published in Bone
Marrow Transplantation in 2017.
Congratulations to Prof Andrew Grigg
and all of the co-authors.

The BMT group has continued to grow
over the last year. The successful
completion of studies and launching
of new ones is a mark of a successful
group. New drugs, particularly in
the setting of GVHD treatment and
prophylaxis offer new opportunities for
investigator initiated studies, and we
look forward to receiving new proposals
for consideration and development.
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DISEASE GROUP reports

Myeloma
Chairs

Current Trial / Trialist

A/Prof Peter Mollee

MM16 Ho

Dr Hang Quach

MM17 Spencer
MM18 Quach

Committee members

MM19 Spencer
MM20 Spencer

James D’Rozario
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Myeloma remains an
incurable disease. It is a
low survival cancer and
we have much work to
do. Only by collaborating
together can we truly
improve the lives of our
patients with myeloma.
A/Prof Peter Mollee

Simon Gibbs
Simon Harrison

Trial in the pipeline

Devendra Hiwase

MM21 Spencer

Joy Ho

New trials being considered
are new therapies for Multiple
Myeloma patients

Georgina Hodges
Noemi Horvath
Wojt Janowski
Akash Kalro
Ian Kerridge
Amit Khot
Maya Latimer
Cindy Lee
Edwin Lee
Andrew Lim
Silvia Ling
Gurdeep Parmar
Miles Prince
Andrew Spencer
Dipti Talaulikar
Craig Wallington-Beddoe

ALLG Key Trial
Centre Staff
Suzanne Cake
Tracey Gerber
Robyn Hemmes
Nola Kennedy
Flora Yuen
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The aim of the ALLG Myeloma Disease
Group is to support its members to
produce high quality clinical research,
which will improve the outcomes of
patients with myeloma.
Basic and clinical research in
myeloma continues to progress at a
rapid pace. Improved understanding
of the molecular pathogenesis,
immunobiology and microenvironment
of myeloma have led to a better
understanding of the disease.
The therapy of multiple myeloma
has also progressed with multiple
new classes of agent demonstrating
significant clinical activity in recent
trials. The field of immunotherapy
has cemented its place and we have
seen promising early results with BITE
antibodies and CAR-T cells directed
against various myeloma specific
antigens. Combination therapies have
proven response and survival benefits
but continue to challenge the PBAC
due to the expense of these treatments
and they remain largely unobtainable
in Australia outside of the setting
of clinical trials and compassionate
access programs.
In the upfront transplant-eligible
population, Prof Andrew Spencer ran
two studies that were recently closed
to accrual. The ALLG MM17 trial is
a study of combining carfilzomib,
thalidomide and dexamethasone
treatments for transplant-eligible
myeloma patients with a suboptimal
response to initial bortezomib-based
induction therapy. The second study,
MM18, was our first collaboration with
the Asian Myeloma Network. A rapid
accrual of the Australian cohort was
completed, and is currently accruing in
Asian sites. Interim results of the

MM16 and MM18 studies have been
submitted to the 2018 American
Society of Haematology meeting.
MM21, a study of lenalidomide,
daratumumab and dexamethasone for
transplant-eligible myeloma patients
with a suboptimal response to initial
bortezomib-based induction therapy,
has been designed and is planned
to open late 2018. A new concept
examining myeloma therapy in the
elderly with treatment delivery altered
according to frailty assessment is in
development.
Congratulations to Professor
Andrew Spencer for publishing two
meta-analyses, based in part, on
the ALLG MM11 trial. Treatment
Intensification with Autologous Stem
Cell Transplantation and Lenalidomide
Maintenance Improves Survival
Outcomes of Patients with Newly
Diagnosed Multiple Myeloma in
Complete Response; and autologous
transplant vs oral chemotherapy and
lenalidomide in newly diagnosed young
myeloma patients: a pooled analysis.
Also, a big congratulations to Dr Anna
Kalff for presenting the ALLG MM14
trial at the European Haematology
Association Meeting called
Pomalidomide alone or in combination
with low dose dexamethasone as
maintenance following induction
with pomalidomide and low dose
dexamethasone in relapsed and
refractory myeloma (ALLG MM14).
To remain relevant, the ALLG Myeloma
Disease Group will continue to facilitate
basic and translational research into
myeloma in the context of its trial
program. We will examine the impact
of these new therapies and, where
possible, incorporate pharmacoeconomic analyses into clinical trials.

The Myeloma disease group is actively
pursuing new clinical trial ideas,
which are planned to transpire in the
coming year.
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Supportive Care
Chairs
Dr Robert Weinkove

Current Trial / Trialist
RATIONAL (ALLG endorsed)

Dr Zoe McQuilten

Trial in the pipeline
Committee members
Asma Ashraf
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Due to improving
treatments, more and
more people are living
with blood cancers for
many years, sometimes for
decades. Our Supportive
Care studies aim to help
people with blood cancers
make informed decisions,
with their clinicians, about
the best ways to prevent
infections, manage low
blood counts, and reduce
the impact of cancer
therapies.
Dr Robert Weinkove

Sharon Avery
Xavier Badoux
Peter Bardy
Ashanka Beligaswatte
Anoop K Enjeti
Shane Gangatharan
Nada Hamad
Anna Johnston
Maya Latimer
Allison Mo
Ruth Spearing
Ferenc Szabo
Constantine Tam
Patricia Walker
Erica Wood

REDDS2 (ALLG endorsed)
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During 2017, the Supportive Care
Disease Group focussed primarily on
the design and conduct of randomised
trials in two areas identified as a high
priority by surveyed ALLG members:
transfusion practice and prevention
of infections.
The Supportive Care group aims to
design and conduct clinical trials
of interventions that aim to reduce
the impact of blood cancers, and
of treatments for blood cancers,
on patients’ lives.
The ALLG-endorsed phase 2 RATIONAL
feasibility trial, funded by the Australian
National Blood Authority, aims to
assess daily antibiotic use in this
patient group, and commenced
recruitment in 2017. The RATIONAL
trial, conducted by the Transfusion
Research Unit at Monash University in
affiliation with the ALLG, reached the
halfway recruitment milestone. This
randomised feasibility trial is the first
trial worldwide to compare antibiotics
with immunoglobulin infusions to
prevent infections in patients with blood
cancers and low immunoglobulin levels.
In conjunction with the RATIONAL
study, the Supportive Care Disease
Group completed a clinical practice
survey on Ig use, results of which
were presented at the November 2017
ALLG meeting. A systematic review of
infection prevention in people with low
Ig levels due to blood cancers is also
planned. Together with the findings of
the feasibility trial, we hope this will
inform design of a definitive phase 3
trial comparing daily antibiotics with
Ig replacement to prevent infections
in patients with blood cancers.

Many patients with anaemia due to
myelodysplasia (MDS) require regular
red cell transfusions lifelong, but there
is a surprising lack of clinical trials
to inform thresholds for transfusion
in this group. To address this the
international REDDS feasibility trial,
conducted by the UK’s NHS Blood
& Transplant Oxford unit in affiliation
with the ALLG, completed recruitment
last year, and compared two red blood
cell transfusion cut-offs in patients
with anaemia due to a blood condition
called myelodysplasia – results should
be presented at the American Society
of Haematology meeting in December
2018. A follow-up trial, REDDS2, is
currently being planned. In parallel
with this, we are analysing data
collected within the ALLG MDS3 and
MDS4 trials, to examine the impact
of anaemia on quality of life among
Australians with myelodysplasia.
Members of the Supportive Care group
conducted and published surveys
of Australasian clinician practice in
immunoglobulin replacement and red
blood cell transfusion. These surveys,
conducted through the ALLG, have
helped the design and successful
conduct of our clinical trials.
Treatments for blood cancers are
improving rapidly, and as a result,
people are living with blood cancers
for much longer than ever before.
Supportive Care trials aim to help
improve quality of life, and avoid
unnecessary hospital visits for
treatment of infections or other
complications. We aim to help people
live well, by running trials that aim to
reduce infections, inform the use of
blood transfusions and improve quality
of life.

At the November 2017 meeting,
Disease Group member Dr Nada
Hamad presented her concept for a
national audit of the management and
outcomes of blood cancers diagnosed
during pregnancy. This is an area of
clinical need where robust evidence is
lacking. The Supportive Care disease
group looks forward to supporting her
research in this area.
Over the next year, we look forward
to fostering additional international
collaborations and to supporting new
concepts and proposals from disease
group members.
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DISEASE GROUP reports

Laboratory Science
Chairs

Trial in the pipeline

A/Prof Jake Shortt

LS21 (BGB3111)

Dr Robert Weinkove

New research activities being
considered in the Laboratory
Science group include new
biomarker work in Marginal Zone
Lymphoma and a new validation to
harmonise ALM Genetic Mutations.

Committee members
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It is a very exciting time
to be a Haematologist
involved in Blood Cancer
Research. We are seeing
an explosion in new and
effective treatments
that often work in
completely different
ways from conventional
chemotherapy and we
are ideally positioned to
combine sophisticated
laboratory technologies
to help learn more about
these new treatments
and how they can be
best deployed for patient
benefit.
A/Prof Jake Shortt

Asma Ashraf

Bryone Kuss

Dominik Beck

Steven Lane

Piers Blombery

Silvia Ling

Stefan Bohlander David Ma

ALLG Key Trial
Centre Staff

Peter Browett

Paula Marlton

Alberto Catalano

Daniel Owens

Eva Pesce

Greg Corboy

Andrew Perkins

Adele Lee-Wriede

David Curtis

John Pimanda

Mark Dawson

David Ritchie

Anoop Enjeti

Andrew Roberts

Wendy Erber

Andrew Spencer

Maher Gandhi

Dipti Talaulikar

James Gray

Andrew Wei

Carolyn Grove

David Westerman

Yasmin Harvey

Deborah White

Joy Ho

David Yeung

Samar Issa

Agnes Yong

Colm Keane

Current Trial / Trialist
LS17 (REGALLIA)
LS18
LS19
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The Laboratory Sciences Committee
provides input and oversight to
correlative science that is being
performed alongside clinical trial and
registry-based research across all other
disease group streams. When patients
are enrolled in a clinical trial, samples
collected during their treatment can
provide very important insight into how
a trial drug may be working and help
predict those most likely to benefit from
the trial drug in future interventions.
Our committee helps plan these
“biomarker studies” and ensures
that the most scientific benefit is
leveraged from these precious
samples. In addition to clinical trial
research, the ALLG coordinates the
collection, processing and storage
of biological samples from patients
with particular diseases of interest
who are participating in the National
Blood Cancer Registry (NBCR). These
samples are ‘biobanked’ and provide
a further valuable resource of clinically
annotated tissue samples that are
available for scientific research. An
example of this is the LS17 (REGALLIA)
study, an NBCR-linked project seeking
to work out the biology underpinning
poor-risk in adult ALL. The Laboratory
Sciences Committee assists the ALLG
with managing technical aspects of
Biobank. We also help assess requests
for tissue-banked samples in order to
ensure they are utilised appropriately
for important research questions.
The Laboratory Sciences group
has been working closely with the
Acute Leukaemia Disease Group on
several important initiatives. Both
acute myeloid leukaemia (AML) and
acute lymphoblastic leukaemia (ALL)
often go into remission after initial
chemotherapy. However, we know that
low levels

of leukaemia may still remain during
these periods of remission and
ultimately grow back to cause relapse.
New technologies, in particular ‘next
generation sequencing’ allow us to look
in a very sensitive and sophisticated
way for the presence of leukaemia
associated mutations in patients
who are in clinical remission. These
patients are more likely to subsequently
relapse than those in which mutations
can no longer be detected. Future
clinical trials are likely to focus on
eradicating this ‘minimal residual
disease’ (MRD) and preventing relapse.
Many hospitals are developing ‘next
generation sequencing’ as a test for
leukaemia mutation detection, but the
techniques and accuracy of the test
will vary from lab to lab. In order to
make this kind of testing comparable
between different laboratories the
“Molecular Harmonisation” and “MRD
Harmonisation” projects are being
undertaken to standardise such testing.
This will help hospitals set up such
testing, while provide a robust resource
for monitoring treatment responses in
ALLG clinical trials.
In conjunction with the Low-Grade
Lymphoma Disease Group, we are
developing a technologically advanced
correlative science protocol associated
with a trial of Zanubrutinib (BGB3111)
in marginal zone lymphoma. We will
perform comprehensive mutation
detection (again by next generation
sequencing) on marginal zone lymphoma
cells from patients enrolled in this study.
At the same time, we will attempt to
track these mutations in the patient’s
blood plasma – a so-called ‘liquid
biopsy’ approach to patient monitoring.
This will inform predictors of response
and resistance to Zanubritinib in
marginal zone lymphoma.

Congratulations to Prof Maher Ganhdi
and his team for publishing “Immune
evasion via PD-1/PD-L1 on NK cells
and monocytes / macrophages is
more prominent in Hodgkin Lymphoma
than DLBCL” – an analysis utilising
biomarker samples from ALLH NHL21
in Blood 2018; 131: 1809-19.
Science in medicine is accelerating at
a phenomenal pace. The technology
now available to researchers provides
amazing opportunity to leverage
scientific discovery from clinical trial
specimens. This has led to the notion of
“Precision Medicine”, and haematology
sits at its forefront. With platforms like
next-generation sequencing, we can
look into the blue-prints of an individual
subject’s blood cancer cells and start
to work out what its vulnerabilities are.
All of the current Laboratory Sciences
protocols are using these cutting-edge
technologies in order to better tailor
future trials and treatments to those
that are most likely to respond.
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National Blood Cancer Registry

National Blood
Cancer Registry
The Registry and the
Biobank are powerful
tools that will help
researchers make
new discoveries
leading ultimately
to the development
of more effective
treatments for
patients suffering
from acute leukaemia
and lymphoma.
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The registry opened in 2012 and
initially collected clinical data of
participants diagnosed with Acute
Myeloid Leukaemia (AML) and four
types of Uncommon Lymphoma (UL).
Since the beginning of 2017, those
diagnosed with Acute Lymphoblastic
Leukaemia (ALL) have been able
to volunteer to join the NBCR.
In the six years the NBCR has been
operational, the registry has collected
real world diagnostic and clinical data
from a cohort of 1420 individuals: of
these 1152 are AML, 82 are ALL, and
29 are UL patients. The Registry is
open at 35 hospitals across Australia
with sites present in each of the states
and territories in major metropolitan
cities and rural areas. The ALLG are
looking to open additional sites in
regional centres during 2018 and
into 2019.
The Registry represents an
instrumental source of information
for clinical practices, therapeutic
pathways and outcomes. In addition,
NBCR participants are able to donate
tissue samples collected throughout
their treatment to send to the ALLG
Biobank to match clinical samples
to real-world data.

Recruitment Figures
Diagnosis
AML
UL
ALL
Not yet confirmed
Other

Total

Participants

1152
29
82
48
109
1,420

During the 2017–18 year, two laboratory
science projects have been running
under the NBCR: LS17 and LS18.
The LS17 is an ALL study, which
centres on the identification of new
molecular features that have an impact
on patients’ survival with the view to
aid future discovery of novel drugs. At
present, 23 participants have enrolled
in the LS17 study. The LS18 is an
AML study focussing on patients
presenting a particular set of mutations
that have become relevant to the AML
therapeutic landscape. Since LS18
commencement in late 2017, 120
AML patients have been recruited to
the study.
In 2018, as evidence of the growing
importance of the Registry as an
invaluable collection of clinical
information, the ALLG has received a
number of requests for data, which will
be included in international scientific
publications. Looking forward into
next year, the ALLG will be increasing
our data acquisition to better promote
the availability of the NBCR clinical
information and tissue samples to the
scientific community. Further to this,
the ALLG will continue to seek financial
support for the NBCR activities to
ensure the ongoing financial viability
of this crucial platform.
The ALLG would like to thank all the
NBCR participants and site personnel
for their ongoing support of the Registry.
The NBCR Ambassadors:
AML– A/Prof Andrew Wei; UL– A/Prof
Dipti Talaulikar; ALL– Dr David Yeung
Cytogeneticist: Dr Meaghan Wall
Medical Monitors: Dr Akash Kalro,
Dr Ashish Bajel, Dr Ing-Soo Tiong.
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Biobank
The ALLG Biobank is located at
the Hunter Cancer Biobank (HCB)
Newcastle, New South Wales,
Australia. A Biobank is a central
biorepository that receives, processes,
stores and distributes a wide array
of bio-specimens from human tissue
samples including blood, bone marrow,
plasma, and DNA. These bio-specimens
are collected from donors with a
haematological malignancy (Acute
Lymphoblastic Leukaemia (ALL) in
both young and elderly patients,
non-Hodgkin lymphoma, Acute
Myeloid Leukaemia (AML) and Multiple
myeloma) participating in ALLG
investigator initiated clinical trials and
the ALLG National Blood Cancer
Registry (NBCR).
During 2017 the ALLG moved the
Biobank from one facility to HCB,
in a staged transition. Under HCB
we are able to monitor in real-time all
the research samples received into
our biobank.
Looking forward in 2018 we are looking
to build on previous years’ sample
collection numbers especially to our
NBCR programs. While samples
collected within clinical trials are usually
instrumental in achieving the end
point either proving a new treatment
regime works or assessing outcomes
from different therapies combined.
Our NBCR programs facilitate access
to valuable samples for research that
would unattainable outside a clinical
trial. This means that researchers
across Australia can produce meaningful
research that improves patient lives
outside of the clinical trial pathway.
The ALLG is continuing to support
translational research in the field of
Haematology, Oncology and Bone
Marrow Transplant by providing fully
characterized clinical data samples
from our Biobank.

Facilitating translational research
from fully characterized clinical data
samples will assist to harmonise
relationships between Australia’s
internationally renowned researchers
and ALLG’s internationally recognized
clinical research in the field of
Haematology, Oncology and Bone
Marrow Transplant. Together we can
anticipate better understanding of the
events leading to the development
of haematological malignancies and
of factors contributing to patient’s
outcome, which will ultimately lead
to better therapies and outcomes
for patients.
The ALLG Biobank provides
researchers with access to a greater
collection of clinical data samples and
facilitates collaboration by research
groups to conduct future research.

Biobanks have
an increasingly
important role
and are crucial to
facilitating future
medical research.

Figure 1: Sample Holdings at the ALLG Biobank
Trial
NBCR AML
NBCR ALL
NBCR UL
ALL06
AMLM16
AMLM17
AMLM21
APML5
MPN01
NHL29

Participants

Specimens

695
41
0
52
97
21
12
6
66
60

21,820
772
0
910
7,297
170
294
432
0
1,999
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Blood Cancer Forum network

Blood Cancer
Forum network
1. Fight Cancer Foundation
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The Blood Cancer
Forum network
consists of various
community-based
and profession-based
organisations coming
together to exchange
ideas and to discuss
priority areas of blood
cancer in Australia.

Fight Cancer Foundation is dedicated
to providing care, treatment and
support for cancer patients and their
families and funding vital research into
cancer treatment and cures. Founded
in 1989 as the Bone Marrow Donor
Institute to establish Australia’s first
bone marrow donor registry and find a
cure for leukaemia, the organisation’s
broader scope now provides support
services for patients with blood and
other cancers.
Via the Blood Cancer Forum network,
both the ALLG and Fight Cancer
Foundation is working in collaboration
to advocate on behalf of patients
and their families and to finding the
answers to the infinite questions raised
by cancer.

2. HSANZ
The Haematology Society of Australia
and New Zealand (HSANZ) came into
being in 1998 after the amalgamation
of the Haematology Society of
Australia and the New Zealand Society
for Haematology. With the aim of
promoting, fostering and developing
the discipline of haematology in all its
aspects, HSANZ provides support and
advocacy for research in haematology.
The organisation also provides
opportunities for haematologists,
scientists, nurses, students and
other interested parties to meet to
promote scientific communication and
education in the field of haematology.
During the year, ALLG and HSANZ
worked together on a number of
submissions to key government
committees such as the PBAC, and
MSAC. As an organisation dedicated
to the professional advancement

of haematologists, the HSANZ
supports many scholarships and
fellowships to advance career
development and national research
objectives.

3. Leukaemia Foundation
Supporting people living with
Blood Cancer, the Leukaemia
Foundation helps more patients,
carers and families from regional
and rural Australia by providing free
accommodation in capital cities
so they can access life-saving
treatment at major hospitals. The
Leukaemia Foundation is also able to
provide counselling, comprehensive
information, education and support
programs, and financial assistance
to help Australians who are currently
living with a blood cancer. As a
foundation, they are committed
to supporting and advocating for
initiatives to improve health outcomes
for blood cancer patients, including
improved access to new therapies
that may be more effective than those
currently available.
Through our partnership with the
Leukaemia Foundation, the ALLG was
able to continue our member services
and our clinical trial work to ensure
better treatments for those with blood
cancer. By working in collaboration
with the ALLG, the Leukaemia
Foundation supports various clinical
trials including AMLM20, CLL07,
CML11, HD10, and a new trial that
is due to commence in 2019 NHL30.
Working in collaboration ensure as
many Australians as possible can
benefit from clinical trial participation.
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4. Lymphoma Australia

5. Myeloma Foundation

6. Snowdome

Since 2003, Lymphoma Australia
has provided education, support and
awareness of lymphoma, highlighting
many of the challenges facing patients
and their families across Australia.
Lymphoma Australia has many
volunteers supporting the lymphoma
community across Australia. A critical
component for the organisation is to
address the Lymphoma knowledge
gap at the community level and to
advocate to key decision makers to
prioritise Lymphoma as a significant
health concern in our society based on
current data.

Myeloma Australia is the only myeloma
specific organisation in Australia
supporting those patients and carers
living with myeloma. Myeloma Australia
provides support to those living with
Myeloma, an educational service to
raise community awareness, and to
improve patient access to the latest
treatments at affordable prices.
Myeloma Australia actively encourages
and facilitates myeloma research
in Australia through a Medical and
Scientific Advisory Group (MSAG).
As the peak body for clinical issues
relating to the treatment of myeloma,
the group facilitates investigator
collaboration by advocating, and
establishing national guidelines.

Snowdome formed in 2003 with the
aim to accelerate access to new
blood treatments by channelling
government and private philanthropic
investments into innovative research,
clinical trials, and personalised
therapies. With the establishment of
the Christine and Bruce Wilson Centre
for Lymphoma Genomics, located at
the Peter MacCallum Cancer Centre,
Snowdome has directed significant
funding into the emerging field of
genomics. Snowdome in collaboration
with Maddie Riewoldt’s Vision
received the inaugural National Charity
award in the 2016 Telstra Australian
Business Awards in recognition of their
outstanding work.

Through the Blood Cancer Forum
network, the ALLG and Myeloma
Australia have established shared,
common views on better treatments
for Myeloma patients. Together we
will look at different ways to foster
improvements for patients, carers and
their families.

By collaborating with the ALLG,
Snowdome is helping in the
advancement of blood cancer research
via clinical trials. The partnership
will see the implementation of an
important international clinical trial
designed to measure the benefits of
different treatment options for people
with advanced follicular lymphoma.
The clinical trial, NHL30 PETReA, will
help to fill the gap in knowledge by
addressing one of the biggest unmet
needs in follicular lymphoma research.
Through the partnership with the
ALLG, Snowdome is targeting a real
need not currently being addressed
effectively: To bring next-generation,
improved treatments to Australian
patients faster.

Over the last year, Lymphoma Australia
has worked closely with the ALLG by
collaborating on projects regarding
Lymphoma clinical trials. The ALLG
has also had the benefit of being
involved with the Lymphoma Australia
education days for patients and their
supporters. By sharing knowledge and
expertise, the ALLG has been able to
educate people on the importance of
clinical trials and the process required
for participation.
In addition, Lymphoma Australia has
also assisted the ALLG with letters of
support to assist with research funding
and grant applications for Lymphoma
research projects.
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Government
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1. Cancer Australia

2. MRFF

3. NHMRC

Established by the Australian
Government in 2006, Cancer Australia
benefits all Australians affected by
cancer, including their families and
carers. Cancer Australia aims to
reduce the impact of cancer, address
disparities and improve outcomes
for people affected by cancer by
leading and coordinating national,
evidence-based interventions across
the continuum of care. As the lead
national cancer control agency,
Cancer Australia focuses on ways
to reduce the impact of cancer and
improve people’s wellbeing by working
collaboratively with a wide range of
groups, key stakeholders and service
providers with an interest in cancer
control.

The Medical Research Future Fund
(MRFF) provides grants of financial
assistance to support health and
medical research and innovation, with
the objective of improving the health
and wellbeing of Australians. The
MRFF provides a major injection in
health and medical research funding.

The National Health and Medical
Research Council (NHMRC) is
Australia’s leading expert body
promoting the development and
maintenance of public and individual
health standards. NHMRC brings
together within a single national
organisation the functions of research
funding and development of advice.
One of its strengths is that it draws
upon the resources of all components
of the health system, including
governments, medical practitioners,
nurses and allied health professionals,
researchers, teaching and research
institutions, public and private program
managers, service administrators,
community health organisations, social
health researchers and consumers.

Since 2007, the ALLG has partnered
with Cancer Australia through a
national clinical trial infrastructure
funding stream. Along with 13 other
Australian cancer clinical trial groups,
the ALLG has had the opportunity to
develop more well designed clinical
trials and help thousands of blood
cancer patients.
Through the Cancer Australia, their
ongoing infrastructure support means
the ALLG is able to maintain the
employment of adequate staff to
continue our work for our membership
and the blood cancer community.
In 2017, ALLG received a one-year
funding extension with a new funding
application successfully submitted in
May 2018. Special thanks to Cancer
Australia for supporting the ALLG over
the next three years.

November 2017, the ALLG welcomed
the release of the Select Committee
report into Funding for Research into
Cancers with Low Survival Rates,
calling on the Federal Government
to make research into low–survival
cancers a national health priority. ALLG
featured strongly in the report and
were instrumental in a number of the
25 recommendations the committee
presented to government. As a result,
the Federal Government announced
the release of an additional $78 million
for research projects via the MRFF.
The ALLG was successful in receiving
funding for new clinical trials through
the MRFF grant program. The trials
include A/Prof David Curtis for his
Bone Marrow Transplant BM12 trial,
Prof Maher Gandhi for the Primary
CNS Lymphoma NHL31 trial, and Dr
Matt Greenwood for the ALL9 trial in
Acute Lymphoblastic Leukaemia via
CanTeen. We still have a number of
clinical trial applications pending; these
include Prof Maher Gandhi researching
Diffuse Large Cell B-Cell Lymphoma,
A/Prof Andrew Wei researching Acute
Myeloid Leukaemia, Prof Judith
Trotman researching Aggressive
Follicular Lymphoma, and Prof Andrew
Spencer researching myeloma.
We are excited that Clinical Trials will
continue to be a top priority for MRFF
during 2018–2020.

In 2018, the National Health and
Medical Research Council (NHMRC)
released three new guidance
documents relating to the conduct of
clinical trials in Australia. The ALLG has
reviewed the documents and proudly
reports that we are compliant with all
guidelines. In all ALLG clinical trials, we
will continue to ensure participant care
and the reliability of a quality research
program with an emphasis on data
safety.
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Government Submissions
2017–18
Funding assessment for clinical trials

NHMRC Clinical Trials

14/07/2017

Tax DGR Reform Opportunities

Treasury, Aust Government

14/07/2017

AML treatment (ALLG / HSANZ Joint Letter)

PBAC

17/07/2017

MRFF funding to trial and registry networks

ACTA meeting

28/07/2017

ALLG / HSANZ Joint Letter re: AML

PBAC

19/10/2017

Review of Australian Clinical Trials Handbook – by invitation submission

TGA

08/11/2017

Integrated Addendum to ICH E6(R1)

TGA

21/11/2017

Biobank networking and globalisation survey

NHMRC Invitation to participate 30/01/2018

ALLG Letter to MSAC CarTCells

HTA MSAC

14/11/2017

ALLG Letter to MSAC (by invitation) CarTCells targeted consultation

MSAC

08/02/2018

ALLG / HSANZ Joint Letter: AML Maintenance

TGA

21/02/2018

ALLG / HSANZ Joint Letter: Mantel Cell Lymphoma

PBAC

18/04/2018

The Therapeutic Goods Administration (Stakeholder Survey)

TGA

29/06/2018
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Cancer and Clinical Trial Associations

Cancer and
Clinical Trial
Associations
1. COSA
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The Clinical Oncology Society of
Australia (COSA) is the peak national
body representing health professionals
from all disciplines whose work
involves the care of cancer patients.
COSA ensures all Australians receive
quality multidisciplinary cancer
care from supported and informed
health professionals who work in
a multidisciplinary manner. COSA
supports the professional and
educational needs of cancer health
professionals and advocates on behalf
of its members to improvement cancer
care and control within Australia.
The ALLG is a cooperative trial group
member of COSA and have lead roles
in the network including the Tele Trials
Pilot Program.

2. ACTA
The Australian Clinical Trials Alliance
(ACTA) is a national peak body
supporting and representing the
networks of clinician researchers
that conduct investigator-initiated or
“public-good” clinical trials within the

Australian health system. Officially
launched in 2012, ACTA membership
includes 50 clinical trials networks,
trial coordinating centres and clinical
quality registries. These groups cover
a broad range of disease groups
and clinical disciplines and represent
a large proportion of the publicgood clinical research conducted in
Australia each year. By developing,
implementing and supporting a
national framework, ACTA will be able
to expand the capacity, capability,
efficiency and effectiveness of Clinical
Trials Networks (CTNs) in Australia.
Through the coordination of a strategic
program of work, ACTA will facilitate
the development of a dynamic and
responsive roadmap for the future
that builds on the sector’s significant
strengths and expertise.
Released in August 2017, by the
Australian Commission on Safety
and Quality in Health Care and the
Australian Clinical Trials Alliance
(ACTA), the welcomed report analysed
25 Australian clinical trials initiated by
clinicians. One of the most significant
findings was the 5.8:1 benefit-to-cost
ratio of clinical trials – meaning that

for each $1 invested in clinician-driven
clinical trials in Australia, benefits of
$5.80 can be realised.
Acting as the national alliance partner,
ACTA has helped to strengthen sector
capability, maximise collaboration,
embed clinical trial best practice, and
offer professional support, including
the ability to foster leadership and
a knowledge exchange across
disciplines and health service sites.
Through our membership with ACTA,
the ALLG has benefited from this
scheme through the identification
of network priorities and the
implementation of a national capabilitybuilding framework. ACTA has also
supported cross-sector collaboration
to advance novel methodologies
and technologies that support the
conduct of well de-signed, high impact
investigator-initiated clinical trials.
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Clinical Trial
& Research
Support
1. William Anglis
Sir William Angliss was one of
Australia’s most prominent early
businessmen. Sir William made a
significant contribution to Australian
government and society. Upon his
passing in 1957, he continued his
philanthropy by establishing two
Charitable Funds, one in Victoria and
the other in Queensland to be held
in perpetuity upon trust. The William
Angliss Charitable Fund, located in
Victoria, provides grants for services
within the health and welfare sectors.
In June 2017, the ALLG applied for
a small equipment grant to assist the
Royal Melbourne Hospital continue
its leading clinical trial efforts. We
were successful with the grant
application and was able to put the
money towards the purchase of
laboratory equipment. The centrifuge
is a motor-driven device used in
laboratory hospitals for the purposes
of separating liquid into separate
components to assist with blood
cancer clinical trials and in the early
detection of blood cancer.

2. Barr Family Foundation
In 2011, the Barr Family Foundation
kindly committed to funding ALL06,
a clinical trial investigating the treatment
of Victorian Teenagers with Acute
Lymphoblastic Leukaemia (ALL). In
2018, the ALL06 clinical trial closed
to recruitment, after recruiting 86
patients for the study.
ALL06 has been an extremely important
clinical trial not only for the participating
patients, but for the entire Australian
community. As a result of the success
of this clinical trial, the ALLG has since
commenced another leukaemia clinical

trial and will open another follow-on
clinical trial in 2018 that will benefit
patients who have this same type
of leukaemia. The ALL06 clinical trial
has been significant in establishing
leukaemia research and we want
to thank the generosity of the Barr
Family Foundation for funding this trial.

3. CanTeen
CanTeen is a national support
organisation for young people (aged
12–25) living with cancer; including
cancer patients, their brothers
and sisters and young people with
parents or primary carers with cancer.
Young cancer patients created the
organisation in 1985, and young
people living with cancer guide its
policies. Operating in both Australia
and New Zealand, CanTeen offers
leading edge research into the
emotional and social impacts of
cancer, and to truly understand how
cancer is different in a young person’s
world.
In August 2017, the ALLG partnered
with CanTeen to launch a new clinical
trial to improve the treatment of young
Australians with Acute Lymphoblastic
Leukaemia (ALL). With the support
of the Medical Research Future Fund
(MRFF), via CanTeen, the ALLG’s
new clinical trial (ALL9) aims to
improve outcomes in Adolescent and
Young Adult patients with ALL by
incorporating a novel immune based
therapy into the standard treatment
schedule for ALL. The new clinical trial
ALL9 will have a ‘significant impact’,
and will be one of the first trials in
the world incorporating this level
of treatment for young Australians
suffering leukaemia.
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Life Members & Hall of Fame

Life Members
& Hall of Fame
Life Members
2017 Janey Stone
2016 Prof Ken Bradstock
2016 A/Prof Devinder Gill

The ALLG currently has seven Life Members.
Life Membership is recognition of major and
sustained contributions to the ALLG.

2016 Prof Doug Joshua AO
2013 Prof Ray Lowenthal
2013 Prof James Bishop
2013 Dr Jane Matthews
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From left: John Seymour, Janey Stone,
Mark Hertzberg, Delaine Smith

With a career spanning 50 years, 28 of
those with The Australasian Leukaemia
& Lymphoma Group (ALLG), Janey is a
champion of science, whose work has
made a significant contribution toward
improving human health.
Janey’s career began with the
Department of Biochemistry at
the Royal Women’s Hospital after
graduating from the University of
Melbourne in 1967. By 1973, Janey
was working with Max Whiteside, a
Melbourne pioneer of clinical trials, in
the Pathology Department of the Alfred
Hospital. Janey saw the first generation
of adults with AML achieve remission,
this in itself an outstanding medical
achievement of the day.
During the 1980’s, Janey diversified
her skills as a services officer with
the Commonwealth Department of
Employment, Education and Training.
These eight years would give Janey
the skills needed to pioneer what
would become the core ALLG national
training program for the Associate
members – data managers and
research nurses.
Over the long haul, Janey and Max
Wolf formed a review panel, which
reviewed the stage, extra-nodal sites
and response status of all patients.
This expertise enabled Janey to
contribute at high level to future trials,
and became a beacon of disease

and trial enlightenment to PIs of
subsequent ALLG lymphoma studies.
With increased knowledge, Janey was
in a strong position to drive new work
for the ALLG from administration, to
finances, contracts and budgeting.
Self-taught in everything from
intellectual property rights to event
management, Janey became the
backbone of the ALLG. Janey believes
out of the 35 trials she managed, it
was NHL7. Published in 2014, the
NHL7 report outlined Janey as the
third Author.
Formally appointed as Executive
Officer of the ALLG in 2005, Janey
was able to focus exclusively on
ALLG administration. Janey’s first
“fun” experience in this role was the
NHMRC grant application that resulted
in ALLG’s first infrastructure funding.
Highly adaptive to any situation, Janey
did so well in everyday business that
she set the foundations for every role
with ALLG has today.
Janey’s contribution to the ALLG over
several decades make her a worthy
candidate for Life membership.
Congratulations and thankyou Janey
on behalf of all past current and future
members.
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Scholarship
Awards
2017 Scholarship Recipient
Michele Gambrill
Haematology Trials Office
Manager, Calvary Mater
Newcastle Hospital,
Newcastle, NSW
Past recipients
2015 Andy Phay
2016 Admir Huseincehajic

Janey Stone
Perpetual Award
The Janey Stone Perpetual Award is
annually awarded to honour Janey
Stone for her strong and tireless
promotion of professional development
for site personnel.
In 2017, the Janey Stone Perpetual
Award was presented to Aparna
Chauhan. Aparna, who has an MSc
in Biotechnology, has been an ALLG
Associate Member for several years,
having worked in WA and in New
Zealand. Aparna used the award to
visit the ALLG Trial Centre and the
Peter MacCallum Clinical Trials Unit
both located in Melbourne.
As a result of her site visits, Aparna
has gained a greater understanding
of the set-up of a study from the
very early stages through to the

Anne Lenton
Memorial Scholarship
The Anne Lenton Memorial Scholarship
is annually awarded to honour Anne
Lenton in recognition of her commitment
to the ideal that all professional people
should aim for the highest possible
academic and research achievements.
In 2017, the Anne Lenton Award was
presented to Michele Gambrill from
Calvary Mater Newcastle to facilitate a
clinical research skills training program
for the clinical trials staff. Through the
PRAXIS Australia Research Essentials
Course, the clinical research team
were able to elevate the Haematology
Trials Unit’s essential skills across all
levels of involved staff.

successful running and final stages of
completion. Aparna has also become
more familiar with clinical trial protocol
writing skills and the processes of site
selection. Aparna observed a number
of valuable techniques during her site
visits. She has already made some of
these changes at Sir Charles Gairdner
and is working towards making
more changes in the future to bring
consistency across all trials.
2018 Scholarship Recipient
Amie Connor
Clinical Trials Assistant, Sir Charles
Gairdner Hospital Perth WA
Project
Site Development Project at Sir
Charles Gairdner Hospital WA
Amie will share her learnings with ALLG
peers at the May 2019 Scientific Meeting.

2018 Scholarship Recipient
Lorraine King
Acting manager Haematology Clinical
Research Unit, St George Hospital
Kogarah NSW
Project
Point of Care Use of Mobile Device
Project at St George Hospital NSW
Lorraine will share her learnings with
ALLG peers at the November 2018
Scientific Meeting.
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2017 Scholarship Recipient
Aparna Chauhan
Clinical Trial Assistant,
Sir Charles Gairdner Hospital,
Perth, WA
Past recipients
2014 Naomi Sprigg
2015 Angela Neville
2016 Sonja Gauci

INDUSTRY SUPPORT

Industry
Support
Thank you for your ongoing support and
contribution. We gratefully acknowledge
your sponsorship and look forward to
working with you over the coming year.
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Financial REPORT

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2018
Note

2018
($)

2017
($)

Revenue

2(a)

4,092,519

4,047,449

Other Income

2(b)

166,210

175,041

4,258,729

4,222,490

2,981,345

3,041,798

263,355

231,048

901,765

856,765

Revenue and other income

Expenses
Trial Expenses

2(c)

Meeting expenses
Operational expenses

2(d)

Other Expenses

2(e)

Deficit for the financial year

228,252

277,010

4,374,717

4,406,621

(115,988)

(184,131)

(21,140)

51,442

(2,308)

1,334

(23,448)

52,776

(139,436)

(131,355)

Other comprehensive income
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Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Available-for-sale financial assets:
Current year gains/(losses)
Reclassification to profit or loss
Other comprehensive income for the financial year
Total comprehensive loss for the financial year
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2018
Note

2018
($)

2017
($)

Cash and cash equivalents

4

1,920,417

2,758,468

Trade and other receivables

6

275,184

872,688

Work-in-progress

7

229,025

93,988

Other current assets

8

40,883

70,028

2,465,509

3,795,172

Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment

9

204,531

169,445

Available-for-sale financial assets

5

1,472,017

1,494,960

Trade and other receivables

6

Total Assets

78,396

76,298

1,754,944

1,740,703

4,220,453

5,535,875

931,048

988,592

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables

10

Provisions

11

323,780

330,887

Other current liabilities

12

1,406,866

2,208,573

2,661,694

3,528,052

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions

11

78,167

173,842

Other non-current liabilities

12

760,688

974,641

Total Liabilities
Net Assets

838,855

1,148,483

3,500,549

4,676,535

719,904

859,340

718,846

834,834

1,058

24,506

719,904

859,340

Equity
Retained surplus
Reserve
Total Equity
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Financial REPORT

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2018
Balance at 30 June 2016
Deficit for the year to 30 June 2017

Retained
Surplus
($)

Revaluation
Reserve
($)

Total
($)

1,018,965

(28,270)

990,695

(184,131)

(184,131)

Other comprehensive income
Current year gains

–

51,442

51,442

Reclassification to profit or loss

–

1,334

1,334

(184,131)

52,776

(131,355)

834,834

24,506

859,340

(115,988)

–

(115,988)

Current year losses

–

(21,140)

(21,140)

Reclassification to profit or loss

–

(2,308)

(2,308)

(115,988)

(23,448)

(139,436)

718,846

1,058

719,904

Total comprehensive loss for the year
Balance at 30 June 2017
Deficit for the year to 30 June 2018
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive loss for the year
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Balance at 30 June 2018
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2018
Note

2018
($)

2017
($)

4,128,909

4,564,595

(5,033,901)

(4,708,144)

131,725

152,343

(773,267)

8,794

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers and employees
Interest received
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

15

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Payment for furniture and fittings
Investment in available-for-sale financial assets

(63,878)

(90,336)

(129,906)

(498,102)

Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale financial assets

129,000

134,213

Net cash used in investing activities

(64,784)

(454,225)

Net decrease in cash held

(838,051)

(445,431)

Cash at beginning of financial year

2,758,468

3,203,899

Cash at end of financial year

1,920,417

2,758,468

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Financial REPORT

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018
Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The material accounting policies that have been adopted in the preparation of these statements are presented below. Unless
otherwise stated, the accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous year.

Corporate Information
Australasian Leukaemia & Lymphoma Group Limited is a not-for-profit Company limited by guarantee, incorporated and
domiciled in Australia. The entity’s functional and presentation currency is Australian dollars (A$).
The registered office and principal place of business is: Ground Floor, 35 Elizabeth Street Richmond, VIC 3121

Financial Reporting Framework
The Company is not a reporting entity because in the opinion of the directors there are unlikely to exist users of the financial
statements who are unable to command the preparation of reports tailored so as to satisfy specifically all of their information
needs. Accordingly, this special purpose financial report has been prepared to satisfy the directors’ financial reporting
requirements under the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012. The financial statements were
authorised for issue on 5 October 2018 by the directors of the Company.
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46

Basis of Preparation
These are special purpose financial statements that have been prepared for the sole purpose of complying with the
Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 requirements to prepare and distribute financial statements
to the members and must not be used for any other purpose. The directors have determined that the accounting policies
adopted are appropriate to meet the needs of the members.
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, AASB
107 Cash Flow Statements, AASB 108 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, AASB 1048
Interpretation and Application of Standards and AASB 1054 Australian Additional Disclosures which apply to all entities
required to prepare financial statements under the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012.
The financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs unless otherwise stated
in the notes.
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income presentation
The presentation of expenses within the statement of profit or loss reflects the function of the expenses incurred rather than
the nature to which the incurred expenses relate. This presentation has been undertaken on the basis that it will provide
more relevant and reliable information to users of the financial statements.

Accounting Policies
a. Cash and cash equivalents
 ash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and on demand deposits, and other short term highly liquid
C
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.
b. Trade and other receivables
 rade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, less provision for
T
doubtful debts. Trade receivables are generally due for settlement no more than 30 days from the date of recognition.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018
c. Work-in-progress
Work in progress represents costs incurred and profit recognised on projects that are in progress and have not been
invoiced at reporting date. Work in progress is valued at net realisable value after providing for foreseeable losses.
d. Property, Plant and Equipment
Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.
The carrying amount of each property, plant and class is reviewed annually by the directors for indications of impairment.
This is done by ensuring that the carrying amount is not in excess of the recoverable amount from those assets. The
recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of the remaining service potential to the company and is measured using
the depreciated replacement cost method. If any such indications exist, an impairment test is carried out, and any
impairment losses on the assets recognised.
Depreciation
The depreciable amount of all fixed assets is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the asset’s useful life to the
Company commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use.
The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:
Class of Fixed Asset

Depreciation Rate

Office Equipment

20%

Furniture and Fittings

10%

Biobanking Equipment

10%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains or losses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
e. Impairment of Assets
At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying values of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being
the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use, is compared to the asset’s carrying value. Any
excess of the asset’s carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed to profit or loss, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease to the extent that
the revaluation reserve relates to that asset. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a suitable discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
f. Trade and other payables
Trade payables and other accounts payable are recognised when the Company becomes obliged to make future
payments resulting from the purchase of goods or services.
g. Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
if it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, a provision is recognised immediately. Provisions are not recognised for general future operating
losses. Non-current provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money, and where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018
h. Employee Benefits
Provision is made for the Company’s liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees to the
end of the reporting period. Employee benefits that are expected to be settled within one year have been measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled, plus related on-costs. Employee benefits payable later than
one year have been measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits.
These cash flows are discounted using market yields on high quality corporate bonds with terms to maturity that match
the expected timing of cash flows.
i. Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable in relation to that activity.
Trial income:
When the outcome of a contract can be assessed reliably, contract revenue and associated costs are
recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the reporting date.
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When the Company cannot measure the outcome of a contract reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs that have been incurred and are recoverable. Contract costs are recognised in the period in which they
are incurred. When contract costs have yet to be incurred for income already received, the income is shown in the
Statement of Financial Position as a liability.
When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
A contract’s stage of completion is determined by comparing costs incurred to date with the total estimated costs.
Grants income:
Grants received subject to conditions that specified services are delivered are considered reciprocal and revenue
recognised when the services have been performed. Grant monies received for services not yet performed are shown in
the Statement of Financial Position as a liability. Donations and grants received which are not subject to any conditions
are recognised when received and/or when control is obtained over the assets.
Other income:
Interest revenue and other revenue is recognised on a receivable basis.
Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of duties and taxes paid. All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and
service tax (GST).
j. Goods & services tax (GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred
is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office. In these circumstances, the GST is recognised as part of the
cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of expense. Receivables and payables in the statement of financial
position are shown inclusive of GST. Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis. The GST
component of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the
taxation authority is classified as operating cash flows.
k. Income Tax
No provision has been made for taxation in the financial statements as the Company is exempt from income tax under
Division 50 of the Australian Income Tax Assessment Act 1997.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018
l. Comparative figures
When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to confirm the changes in presentation
for the current financial year.
m. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments
The preparation of financial statements requires the directors of the Company to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
n. Clinical study support
While there is no present obligation under the existing clinical trial agreements, the directors are committed to providing
ongoing funding to these trials in accordance with their original budgets.
o. Available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets
AFS financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are either designated to this category or do not qualify for
inclusion in any of the other categories of financial assets. The Company’s AFS financial assets include listed securities.
All AFS financial assets are measured at fair value. Gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income
and reported within the revaluation reserve within equity, except for impairment losses, which are recognised in profit
or loss. When the asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired the cumulative gain or loss recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from the equity reserve to profit or loss and presented as a reclassification
adjustment within other comprehensive income. Interest and dividends are recognised in profit or loss within ‘revenue’.
For AFS equity investments impairment reversals are not recognised in profit or loss and any subsequent increase in fair
value is recognised in other comprehensive income.
p. New accounting standards and interpretations
Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 30 June 2017
reporting periods. The Company’s assessment of the impact of these new standards and interpretations is set out below:
(i)	AASB 9 Financial Instruments (December 2014), effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018. The Company has accessed the impact of AASB 9 and determined securities held should be treated as “Debt
Securities Fair-valued through OCI”. This change will have nil impact on the transactions and balances recognised in
the financial statements when it is first adopted for the year ending 30 June 2019; and
(ii)	AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019. The Company is yet to undertake a detailed assessment of the impact of AASB 15. However,
based on the Company’s preliminary assessment, the Standard is not expected to have a material impact on the
transactions and balances recognised in the financial statements when it is first adopted for the year ending 30 June
2020;
(iii)	AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profits Entities, effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019. The Company is yet to undertake a detailed assessment of the impact of AASB 15. However, based on the
Company’s preliminary assessment, the Standard is not expected to have a material impact on the transactions and
balances recognised in the financial statements when it is first adopted for the year ending 30 June 2020; and
(iv)	AASB 16 leases, effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The Company is yet
to undertake a detailed assessment of the impact of AASB 16. However, based on the Company’s preliminary
assessment, the standard is not expected to have a material impact on the transactions and balances recognised in
the financial statements when it is first adopted for the year ending 30 June 2020. The major operating lease relates
to the lease of office premises and on adoption of this Standard a lease asset (right to use) and an offsetting lease
liability would be recognised at the present value of future lease payments. The net impact on profit or loss is not
expected to be significant.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018
2018
($)

2017
($)

3,049,216

3,027,768

Grant income

527,275

532,390

Meeting income

475,100

444,105

Note 2: Deficit for the Financial Year
a.

Revenue and Other Income
Trial income

Donations – non-trial-specific

b.

Membership subscriptions
Gain/(Loss) on sale of investment
Other

c.

149,186

24,528

23,779

(402)

1,270

609

806

166,210

175,041

1,064,014

958,708

635,171

620,780

24,200

22,000

28,793

25,112

Operational Expenses
Employee benefits
Audit services

e.

141,475

Trial Expenses
Employee benefits

d.

43,186
4,047,449

Other Income
Interest from financial institutions
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40,928
4,092,519

Other Expenses
Depreciation

Note 3: Members Guarantee
The Company is limited by guarantee. If the company is wound up, the Constitution states that each full member is required
to contribute a maximum of $100 (2017: $100) each towards meeting any outstanding obligations of the Company. At 30
June 2018 the number of full members was 414 (2017: 415).
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018
2018
($)

2017
($)

Note 4: Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash at bank
Term deposits

670,417

608,468

1,250,000

2,150,000

1,920,417

2,758,468

1,472,017

1,494,960

1,472,017

1,494,960

Note 5: Available-for-sale Financial Assets
Investment in listed securities

Note 6: Trade and Other Receivables
Current
Trade receivables

208,343

836,029

Interest receivable

43,974

36,322

166

337

Sundry debtors
GST Receivable

22,701

–

275,184

872,688

78,396

76,298

78,396

76,298

229,025

93,988

229,025

93,988

40,883

70,028

40,883

70,028

Non-current
Trade and other receivable

Note 7: Work in Progress
Work-in-progress

Note 8: Other Current Assets
Prepayments
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018
2018
($)

2017
($)

Office equipment at cost

122,834

58,955

Less accumulated depreciation

(48,886)

(38,501)

73,948

20,454

Furniture and Fittings at cost

102,090

102,090

Less accumulated depreciation

(38,489)

(28,281)

63,601

73,809

Note 9: Property, Plant and Equipment
Office Equipment

Furniture and Fittings

Biobanking Equipment
82,016

82,016

(15,034)

(6,834)

66,982

75,182

204,531

169,445

Trade payables

149,214

190,144

Sundry payables and accrued expenses

781,834

788,118

Furniture and Fittings at cost
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Less accumulated depreciation

Total Property, Plant and Equipment

Note 10: Trade and Other Payables

GST Payable

–

10,330

931,048

988,592

255,745

271,100

Note 11: Provisions
Current
Employee benefits

68,035

59,787

323,780

330,887

Employee benefits

10,460

7,907

Provision for contract losses

67,707

165,936

78,167

173,843

Provision for contract losses

Non-current
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018
2018
($)

2017
($)

1,378,910

2,184,700

Note 12: Other Liabilities
Current
Income received in advance

27,956

23,873

1,406,866

2,208,573

Income received in advance

545,495

731,492

Lease incentive liability

215,193

243,149

760,688

974,641

Lease incentive liability

Non-current

Note 13: Contingent Liabilities
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There are no contingent liabilities at the end of the year.

Note 14: Events Subsequent to Balance Date
No other matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the year which
significantly affected or may affect the operations of the entity, the results of those
operations, or the state of affairs of the entity in future financial years.
2018
($)

2017
($)

(115,988)

(184,131)

28,793

25,112

402

(1,270)

647,252

260,070

Note 15: Cash Flow Information
Reconciliation of Cash Flow from Operations with Deficit for the year
Deficit for the financial year
Non-cash flows in operating surplus:
– Depreciation
– (Gain)/loss on sale of investment
Changes in assets and liabilities:
– Decrease in trade and other receivables
– Decrease in inventories
– Decrease in trade and other payables
– Decrease in provisions
– Increase in other liabilities
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

(135,037)

77,504

(80,245)

(281,527)

(102,782)

(45,532)

(1,015,659)

158,568

(773,267)

8,794

Financial REPORT

Directors’ Declaration

The Directors have determined that the Company is not a reporting entity and that this special purpose financial report
should be prepared in accordance with the accounting policies described in Note 1 to the financial statements.
The directors of the Company declare that:
1.	The financial statements comprising the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of
financial position, statement of cash flows, statement of changes in equity, and accompanying notes as set out on pages
6 to 16 are in accordance with the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012, and:
a. comply with Accounting Standards described in Note 1 to the financial statements and the Australian Charities and
Not-for-profits Commission Regulation 2013; and
b. give a true and fair view of the Company’s financial position as at 30 June 2018 and of its performance for the year
ended on that date in accordance with the accounting policies described in Note 1 to the financial statements.
2.	In the directors’ opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and
when they become due and payable.
This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors and is signed for and on behalf of the
directors by;
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Peter T Kempen AM
Chairman
Dated this 5th day of October 2018
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Collins Square, Tower 1
727 Collins Street
Melbourne VIC 3008
Correspondence to:
GPO Box 4736
Melbourne VIC 3001
T +61 3 8320 2222
F +61 3 8320 2200
E info.vic@au.gt.com
W www.grantthornton.com.au

Auditor’s Independence Declaration
To the Directors of Australasian Leukaemia & Lymphoma Group Limited

In accordance with the requirements of section 60-40 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012, as
lead auditor for the audit of Australasian Leukaemia & Lymphoma Group Limited for the year ended 30 June 2018, I declare
that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of any applicable code of professional
conduct in relation to the audit.
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Grant Thornton Audit Pty Ltd
Chartered Accountants

T S Jackman
Partner - Audit & Assurance
Melbourne, 5 October 2018

Grant Thornton Audit Pty Ltd ACN 130 913 594
a subsidiary or related entity of Grant Thornton Australia Ltd ABN 41 127 556 389
‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients
and/or refers to one or more member firms, as the context requires. Grant Thornton Australia Ltd is a member firm of Grant Thornton International
Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are
delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate one
another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. In the Australian context only, the use of the term ‘Grant Thornton’ may refer to
Grant Thornton Australia Limited ABN 41 127 556 389 and its Australian subsidiaries and related entities. GTIL is not an Australian related entity to
Grant Thornton Australia Limited.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.

www.grantthornton.com.au
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Director’s
Report
Your directors present their report
on the Australasian Leukaemia &
Lymphoma Group Limited (“the
Company”) for the financial year
ended 30 June 2018.

Directors of ALLG

Chief Executive Officer

Peter T Kempen AM

Delaine Smith

Associate Professor Peter Mollee
(appointed 16 November 2017)

Directors have been in office since the
start of the financial year to the date of
this report unless otherwise stated.

Associate Professor Peter Bardy
Ms Prue Deniz

Principal Activities

Ms Geraldine Gray

The principal activity of the Company
during the year was to promote basic
and applied clinical research in the
field of leukaemia, Hodgkin disease,
non-Hodgkin lymphoma and related
disease. The aim of the Company is
specifically to attract and generate
funds and donations for the application
of research projects including clinical
trials.

Mr Malcolm McComas
Ms Tina Rankovic
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Professor Andrew Roberts
Professor Philip Rowlings
Professor Mark Hertzberg
(retired 16 November 2017)

Company Secretary
Kelly Hetherton

There have been no significant
changes in the nature of these
activities during the year.
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Director Qualifications
The table below sets out details of qualifications of Directors of the Company who held office throughout the financial year:
Board Member

Professional Qualifications

Experience

A/Prof Peter Bardy

MBBS – University of Adelaide 1982

Fellow since 1990

Fellow of the Royal Australian College
of Physicians 1990

ALLG Executive member since 2005
Currently Director of two not-for-profit companies.

Fellow of the Royal College of Pathologists
of Australasia 1991

Prue Deniz

Geraldine Gray

Cert Int Bus (Monash)

Experienced executive manager in corporate and
public affairs at a number of listed companies.

BBus Marketing (Swinburne)

Extensive marketing and public relations expertise.

BA Korean (Swinburne)

Chair of the Marketing Committee

BA LLB (University of New South Wales)

Practicing lawyer for over 20 years

Grad AICD Course

LLM (Melbourne)

Prof Mark Hertzberg

MBBS – University of Sydney 1980
Fellow of the Royal Australian College
of Physicians 1988

Peter T Kempen AM

Chairman of ALLG Scientific Advisory Committee
(retired 16 November 2017)
Appointed RMO in 1981

Fellow of the Royal College of Pathologists
of Australasia 1988

ALLG Executive member Company Secretary
2007–2011

Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand

Chairman of the Board since 2010

Fellow of the Australian Institute of Company

Professional public practice experience in excess of
40 years. Board management experience 20 years

Directors

Malcolm McComas

A/Prof Peter Mollee

BEc, LLB (Monash), SF Fin

Chairman of ALLG Finance and Audit Committee

Fellow of the Australian Institute of Company
Directors

Investment banking experience of 25 years. Board
management experience over 15 years.

MBBS - University of Queensland, 1990

Chairman of ALLG Scientific Advisory Committee
(appointed 16 November 2017)

MMedSc (Clinical Epidemiology),
University of Newcastle, 2002
Fellow of the Royal Australian College
of Physicians 2000
Fellow of the Royal College of Pathologists
of Australasia, 2000

Tina Rankovic

Dip Diag Rad (Sturt CAE),
GradDip Man (RMIT),
MBus (Swinburne)

Prof Andrew Roberts

MBBS – University of Queensland 1984
Fellow of the Royal Australian College
of Physicians 1993
Fellow of the Royal College of Pathologists
of Australasia 1993

Consultant haematologist in clinical and laboratory
haematology at the Princess Alexandra Hospital.
Associate Professor with the University of
Queensland Medical School.

Experienced CEO with a strong business
management and technical background
in the healthcare, life sciences, engineering,
biotechnology, ‘cleantech’ and tertiary
education and research sectors.
Clinical haematologist, laboratory researcher and
experienced clinical trialist, who has 12 years
Board management experience.
Currently Director of one not-for-profit company.

PhD University of Melbourne 1997

Prof Philip Rowlings

Fellow of the Royal Australian College
of Physicians 1992

Director of Haematology, Conjoint Professor,
Discipline Lead Haematology, School of Medicine
& Public Health, University of Newcastle

Fellow of the Royal College of Pathologists
of Australasia 1992

Former ALLG Safety Data Monitoring
Committee Chair

MBBS – University of New South Wales 1982

Master of Science (Biostatistics)
Medical College of Wisconsin, USA
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Meetings of Directors and Committee meetings
The following table sets out attendance by Directors at Board meetings, and committees of the Board, of the Company
for the financial year:

Directors Meetings

Scientific Advisory
Committee#

Finance & Audit
Committee#

No. eligible
to attend

No. attended

No. eligible
to attend

No. attended

No. eligible
to attend

No. attended

A/Prof Peter Bardy

6

4

Prue Deniz

6

6

Geraldine Gray

6

5

Prof Mark Hertzberg

4

4

3

3

Peter T Kempen AM

6

6

3

3

Malcolm McComas

6

5

3

3

A/Prof Peter Mollee

3

3

3

2

Tina Rankovic

6

6

Prof Andrew Roberts

6

6

Prof Philip Rowlings

6

5

Board Member
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#

7

6

These committees have other honorary members who are not directors of the Company

Committees of the Board
Scientific Advisory Committee
(SAC):
The SAC is composed of at least
7 and up to 10 elected members
from the financial membership of the
company. The chief responsibility
of the SAC is oversight of the ALLG
clinical trial program and linked
translational research studies. Each
member on the SAC may serve for
terms of 3 years, with the option to
serve a second term of three years in
line with the Constitution, Section 15.

Finance Audit Committee (FAC):
The FAC is composed of 5 members,
including 2 Board members and 3
financial members of the company.
FAC is responsible for ensuring that
the ALLG finances are reported in
accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards and that ALLG resources
are managed in such a way as to
ensure financial sustainability and
achieve value for money on costs.
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ALLG Board
of Directors
Mr Peter T. Kempen
AM
Chairman
ALLG Board

Associate Professor
Peter Bardy
Director
ALLG Board

Appointed in early 2010, he is a
member of the Finance and Audit
Committee of the Board and was
recently awarded an honorary Member
(AM) in the general division of the
Order of Australia honours. Peter was
a senior partner of Ernst and Young
up to 2003 and Managing Partner of
the Australian firm’s Corporate Finance
practice. Since leaving professional
practice Peter has been a professional
non-executive company director
serving on the Board of three publicly
listed companies (all as Chairman) as
well as a number of private companies
and not for profit organisations.

He has been an active member of
ALLG since May 2005, and was the
inaugural chair of the Supportive Care
group and was actively involved in the
external review of the Company, which
commended the establishment of
the Company board. In recent years,
he has taken on a number of senior
health administration roles in South
Australia. He brings this breadth of
experience linked to his ongoing active
involvement in patient care to the
Company board.

Ms Geraldine Gray
Director
ALLG Board,
appointed in 2010

Geraldine is a barrister practising at
the Victorian bar with a particular
experience of and interest in health
law. Her legal experience covers
more than 20 years in Melbourne,
Sydney and Hong Kong. Geraldine is a
member of the Society of Construction
Law, the Building Dispute Practitioners’
Society, the National Association
of Women in Construction and the
Australian Insurance Law Association.

Professor Mark
Hertzberg
Chairman of the
Scientific Advisory
Committee (SAC)
(2017)

Appointed to the ALLG Board in 2010,
Mark was the Scientific Advisory
Committee Chair for seven years. He
stood down from his role in 2017 and
was replaced by A/Prof Peter Mollee.
Chair of the High Grade Lymphoma
Disease Group Committee, and an
investigator on a number of trials,
Mark oversaw significant business and
operational changes throughout his
time as SAC Chair. Mark is currently
a Senior Staff Specialist and Clinical
Professor in the Department of
Haematology at Westmead Hospital
Sydney.

Ms Prue Deniz
Director
ALLG Board

She was appointed to the Board in
May 2014 and performs the role of
the Chairperson of the Marketing
Committee of the Board. With a
background in business, marketing
and corporate affairs Prue has 20
years’ experience working within
not-for-profit, strategic advisory and
corporate environments. Prue is a
graduate of the Australian Institute
of Company Directors and holds
a Double Degree in Business/Arts
(Marketing/Korean) and a Graduate
Diploma in International Business.

Mr Malcolm
McComas
Director
ALLG Board

He was appointed to the Board in
2010 and is the Chairman of the
Finance and Audit Committee of
the Board. He has over 25 years’
experience in investment banking
with leadership roles at several global
financial institutions. Over the last
10 years, Malcolm has focused on
various board roles with public and
private companies and not-for-profit
entities. He is currently a director or
chairman of several other entities in
the resources, healthcare, finance and
industrial sectors.
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Associate Professor
Peter Mollee
Chairman
Scientific Advisory
Committee (SAC)
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Peter has been an active member
of the SAC since 2012 and was
appointed as the Chairman of the SAC
in November 2017. Practicing as a
consultant haematologist in clinical and
laboratory haematology at the Princess
Alexandra Hospital, Peter is also an
Associate Professor with the University
of Queensland Medical School.

Ms Tina Rankovic
Director
ALLG Board

She was appointed to the Board in
2013 with aims to embed fundraising
as a core operational activity utilising
her skills, experience and networks.
She is currently working in a strategic
advisory capacity with the College
of Science, Engineering & Health,
RMIT University. Tina has a Diploma
of Diagnostic Radiography and her
post-graduate qualifications include
a Graduate Diploma of Management
(Royal Melbourne Institute of
Technology) and a Masters of Business
degree majoring in innovation and
marketing management (Swinburne
University of Technology). Additionally,
she is a member of the Australian
Institute of Company Directors
(AICD) and has completed the AICD
Company Directors course.

Professor
Philip Rowlings
Director
ALLG Board

He was appointed to the Board in
2016 and has been an ALLG member
since the mid-1980s. Philip has over
30 years research experience in clinical
trials of new treatments, biostatistical
analyses of large datasets in blood
and marrow transplant for leukaemia,
multiple myeloma, lymphoma and
other malignancies. He has been
Director of Haematology for Calvary

Mater Newcastle and Hunter New
England Health District since 2010.
Philip is a member of Scientific
Advisory Committee of the Asia Pacific
Bone Marrow Transplant (APBMT)
group based in Ngoya, Japan. He is
an executive member of NSW BMT
advisory committee, a board member
of the World Wide Blood and Marrow
Transplant Network (WBMT).

Professor
Andrew Roberts
Director
ALLG Board

He was appointed to the Board in
2010, and has served on several other
not-for-profit boards. As the Head
of Clinical Translation at the Walter &
Eliza Hall Institute, Andrew is a clinical
haematologist at the Royal Melbourne
Hospital and Peter MacCallum Cancer
Centre, Haematology Research and
Education Lead for the Victorian
Comprehensive Cancer Centre
(VCCC), and the Metcalf Chair of
Leukaemia Research at the University
of Melbourne. His major research
interests are the development of new
treatments for leukaemia, lymphoma
and myeloma through translational
and clinical research.
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SAC Members
The following SAC committee members proudly represented the ALLG membership:
Chair

Committee Members
Prof Mark Hertzberg
(July–November
2017)
Prince of Wales
Hospital, NSW

Dr Eliza Hawkes
(Co-opted
February 2018)
Austin and Eastern
Health, VIC

Prof Judith Trotman
Concord
Repatriation
General Hospital,
NSW

A/Prof Peter Mollee
(November
2017–Current)
Princess Alexandra
Hospital, QLD

Prof Stephen
Mulligan
Royal North Shore
Hospital, NSW

A/Prof
Andrew Wei
Alfred Hospital,
VIC

Dr David Ross
(Newly elected
in November 2017)
Royal Adelaide
Hospital, SA

Dr Robert Weinkove
Wellington Hospital,
New Zealand

A/Prof Jake Shortt
Monash Health, VIC

Dr David Yeung
(Newly elected
in November 2017)
SA Health, SA

Vice Chair
Prof David Ritchie
(November
2017–Current)
Royal Melbourne
Hospital, VIC

A/Prof William
Stevenson
Royal North Shore
Hospital, NSW
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ALLG Business Management

ALLG Business
Management
Delaine Smith
Chief Executive
Officer
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Having commenced with the
ALLG in 2008, Delaine’s first
undertakings was to adopt the
Members desire to implement a
Board of management structure,
and implement a strategic plan for
the group. With the appointment of
the Board of Directors complete in
2010, Delaine was appointed the
CEO. Major undertakings in that
time have included developing and
completing the objectives in the
2013–16 Strategy Plan, followed by
the development and implementation
of the 2016–21 Strategic Plan. The
delivery of clinical trials services for the
membership, supporting the SAC and
engagement with other foundations
and organisations that share our vision
are key priorities.

Bernadette Marr
Communications
and Marketing
Manager

Bernadette’s unique skill set
includes policy development, public
relations, graphic design, stakeholder
engagement and media management.
Her qualifications include BA Psychology,
BA Law, A/Degree Communications
and A/Degree Graphic Design; she
is currently studying a Masters of
Research and Evaluation at the
University of Melbourne.

Kelly Hetherton
Business Manager
and Company
Secretary

With over 15 years of accounting and
finance experience, Kelly is a qualified
CPA accountant. Kelly has extensive
experience in stakeholder reporting,
system implementations and business
process improvement.

Frances
Skrezenek
Grants and Training
Coordinator (2017)

With 20 years of experience at the
University of Melbourne, Frances’s
qualification include a PhD in Chemistry
from University of Melbourne.

Bebe Beckerman
Philanthropy
and Fundraising
Manager

She offers extensive experience in
fundraising, communications and
event management. Bebe has a
diverse fundraising knowledge and
is adept in applying this knowledge
to differing fundraising contexts and
cultures. Bebe has a Bachelor’s
degree in Media & Communication
and a Master’s degree in International
Development from RMIT.

Dilu Uduwela
Events and
Website Manager

Joining the ALLG in 2009, Dilu
has over 10 years of experience
in event management, website
development and maintenance, project
management and office administration
having worked across many other
industry areas overseas.
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ALLG
Operations
Management
Megan Sanders

Sarah Baxter
(nee Dewberry)

Progam Manager
Clinical Trials and
Trial Centre staff
Manager

She brings a background in both
pharmaceutical company clinical
research and academic research.
Megan holds a Ph.D. and postdoctoral position researching
CD8+ T cell vaccines.

Quality Assurance
Officer

She focuses on improving our trial
management timelines, further
developing our SOP system and
ensuring compliance with GCP
and other regulatory requirements.
Bringing over 8 years of clinical trial
management experience, Sarah was
instrumental at two of the UK’s largest
academic trials units.

PG
63

ALLG Trial Centre Staff
Suzanne Cake

Tracey Gerber

Amanda Jager

Senior CRA

Senior CRA

Senior CRA

She manages NHL26, CLL06, HD08,
MM13 and MM16. She has over 14
years’ experience in Clinical Research
working in both Australia and the
UK including extensive knowledge
in the clinical setting and project
management. Suzanne has an MSc
in Clinical Research and is ARCP
CCRC accredited.

She manages PT-1 and CML09. She
has previous experience in clinical trial
management at the Baker IDI Heart
and Diabetes Institute. Tracey has a
PhD in Biomedical Science focusing
on skeletal muscle metabolism.

Managing the AMLM15 and
ALL06 trials and mentoring more
inexperienced staff members. She
has over 5 years working in clinical
research in the Department of
Haematology and Oncology at the
Queen Elizabeth Hospital in Adelaide.

ALLG Operations Management
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Ashlee Burt

Rachel Cushion

Jennifer Grigo

CRA

CRA

CRA

Working on ALL06 and CML12
clinical trials. Following completion
of her degree, Ashlee undertook
research roles at the Burnet Institute
and Monash University focussing
on vaccine development, and then
transitioned to a clinical trial career
as a Technical Officer at Nucleus
Network, a Phase I clinical trial unit.
She holds a BBiomedSci with honours
from Monash University.

Working on the CLL07, CLL05, HD10,
CML11, NHL14 & NHL24 trials. Rachel
started her career in Dublin as a
Clinical Study Coordinator for Neonatal
Haematology studies before working
as a Data Management Team Lead at
CRO ICON Clinical Research on two
Cardiovascular Disease Mega-trials.
She holds a BSc. in Microbiology and
a MSc. in Biotechnology & Business
from University College Dublin, Ireland.

Working on BM12, NHL29, NHL25,
NHL21 & NHL16 trials. Her previous
experience includes working
across a range of health research
roles and working as the Clinical
Trials Coordinator at the Centre
for Human Psychopharmacology
within Swinburne University. Jennifer
completed her honours in Psychology
in 2009 at Flinders University in
South Australia.

Robyn Hemmes

Michelle Paul

Giulia Quattrocchi

CRA (2018)

CRA (2017)

CRA

She was working on MM18,
CLL6 and BM06 trials (resigned
2018). She brought with her a
strong background in the clinical
trials environment and experience
across a range of therapeutic
areas including neurophysiology,
psychopharmacology, cardiometabolic disease, obesity and weight
loss. Robyn holds a BSc from Monash
majoring in genetics and physiology.

She was working on CML12, MDS4
and ALL5 (resigned 2017). Michelle
worked at the Alfred for 7 years as
a research assistant/production
officer. She has a Bachelor in Science
(biomedical science) with hons (cancer
research project) and is currently
undertaking her Master’s in Public
Health at Monash University.

Working on AMLM16 and ALL08
trials. Giulia spent 6 years in leading
CROs, Quintiles and PPD, managing
a number of phase I-III clinical trials
activities for different sponsors across
multiple therapeutic areas. Giulia has
a B.Sc. in Biology and a M.Sc. in
Cellular and Molecular Biology from
the University of Turin, Italy.

ALLG ANNUAL REVIEW 2018

ALLG Trial Support
Adele Lee-Wriede
Biobank
Coordinator

Having joined the ALLG in 2018 to
manage the operations and logistics of
the biobank, she is a point of contact
for all ALLG members, trial centre and
committees, and will facilitate workflow
between the ALLG and Hunter Cancer
Biobank (HCB). Adele will assist with
researcher requests for clinical data
samples in a timely manner, and
provide scientific & technical guidance.
(In 2018, Adele replaced Naomi Sprigg
who held the position since 2016).

Jerome
Macapagal
Data Manager

With extensive experience in database
development, Jerome joined the
ALLG in January 2018 to develop and
maintain the trial databases. With over
10 year of experience in supporting IT
systems and infrastructure. (In 2018,
Jerome replaced Sri Joshi who held
the position since 2013).

Eva Pesce

Janey Stone

Project
Coordinator
National Blood
Cancer Registry

Research officer
(2017)

She spent over 10 years as a
postdoctoral research fellow in South
Africa and Australia working and
leading projects on the biochemistry
and cell biology of malaria. Eva has
an MSc from the University of Genoa
(Italy) and a Ph.D. from the University
of Bern (Switzerland) in Biochemistry
and Molecular Biology.

Officially retiring in September 2017,
Janey made major contributions both
as a Trial Coordinator for 34 ALLG
trials, and as the Research Officer
where she laid the basis for many
of the procedures and systems
used today.

Brock Patton
Protocol
Development
Coordinator

Having joined the ALLG in 2017,
Brock offers a background of multidisciplinary experience spanning
clinical, diagnostic, research and
business development work. Brock’s
qualifications include a Bachelor
of Medical Science and Master
of Science-Immunology.

Uyen Nguyen

RMIT Honours Student currently
gaining valuable experience running
clinical trials by contributing to data
entry on the CLL6 and AMLM16
trials. As part of a new initiative to
collaborate with RMIT University
and host a vocational placement,
Uyen brings significant experience in
leadership and business management
gained in the retail setting. Uyen has
a B.Sc., an MBA and is currently
completing a Pharmaceutical Sciences
Honours Degree.
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Corporate Structure 2018
Board
Chief Executive Officer

Philanthropy
& Fundraising

ALLG
Business and
Clinical Trial
Operations

Scientific
Advisory
Committee

Finance
& Audit
Committee

Marketing
Committee

Chair

CEO

Chair

Chair

Chair

Safety & Data
Monitoring
Committee
Chair

Acute
Leukaemia
Group
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Chair

BMT
Group
Chair

CML &
MPN Group

HG NHL &
HL Group

Chair

Chair

Membership
LG NHL &
CLL Group

Laboratory
Sciences
Committee

Myeloma
Group

Supportive
Care & AYA
Group

Chair

Chair

Chair

Chair

Operational Structure 2018
Chief Executive Officer
Clinical Trial
Program
Manager

Business
Manager

Research
Officer

SCRA

SCRA

SCRA

CRA

CRA

CRA

CRA

CRA

DM

CRA

CRA

Protocol
Development
Coordinator

Administration
& Events Officer

Biobank
Coordinator

Grants &
Training
Coordinator

Quality
Assurance
Officer –
Trials

NBCR
Project
Coordinator
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Bernadette Marr,
Communications and
Marketing Manager
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